
LOUDON COUNTY COMMISSION 
LOUDON COUNTY, TENNESSEE 

Tuesday, September 3, 2019 

6:00P.M. 

Courthouse Annex 

AGENDA 
Regular Meeting 

Tom Montgomery -Tennessee Risk Management- update on the courthouse fire 

PUBLIC HEARING 

A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE lOUDON COUNTY ZONING RESOLUTION, ARTIClE 7. SECTION 7.080 

VARIANCES, A. APPLICATION AND SECTION 7.090 AMENDMENTS TO RESOlUTION PURSUANT TO 
TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED, SECTION 13-7-105 

1. Opening of Meeting, Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States, Invocation 

2. Roll Call 

3. Election of Loudon County Commission Chairman and Chair Pro-Tempore for the September 2019-

August 2020 Term 

A. Mayor Buddy Bradshaw requests nominations for the election of the Loudon County 

Commission Chairperson for the September 2019- August 2020 term 

B. Chairperson requests nominations for the election of the Loudon County Commission 

Chair-Pro Tempore for the September 2019- August 2020 term 

4. Adoption of September 03, 2019 County Commission Agenda 

5. Reading and Acceptance of the August 5, 2019 County Commission Meeting Minutes 

6. General Public Comments 



Loudon County Commission Meeting Agenda, September 03, 2019, Page 2 

7. Reports of County Officials, Departments, and Committees 

A. Planning & Codes- Jim Jenkins 

A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE LOUDON COUNTY ZONING RESOL UTION, ARTICLE 7. SECTION 
7.080 VARIANCES, A. APPL ICATION AND SECTION 7.090 AMENDMENTS TO RESOLUTION 
PURSUANT TO TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED, SECTION 13-7-105 

B. Mayor Buddy Bradshaw 
1. Grinder Pump for Loudon County Fire and Rescue 

C. Commissioner Van Shaver 

1. Consider sending a letter to the Governor, State Representatives and Senators to 
request some kind of assistance with the jail population 

D. Purchasing Director- Susan Huskey 

1. Contract for Regular Education Transportation Services 

2. Contract for Special Education Transportation Services 

3. Humana 

E. Commissioner- Gary Whitfield 

1. Fenders Community Center 

F. Commissioner- Kelly Brewster 

1. Solid Waste 



Loudon County Commission Meeting Agenda, September 03, 2019, Page 3 

G. Director of Accounts & Budgets- Tracy Blair 

1. Consideration of recommendation to approve application /acceptance of FY 2020 DGA 

Grant with the State Department of Health for wages and benefits of Loudon County 

Health Department employees; $ 413,100; no matching funds required 

2. Consideration of recommendation to approve amendments in the following funds: 

A. County General Fund 101 
B. Highway Department Fund 131 
C. General Purpose School Fund 141 
D. General Capital Projects Fund 171 

3. Distribution of monthly reports 

H. Commissioner David Meers 

1. Notaries 

8. Adjournment 



RESOLUTION NO. ___ _ 
A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE LOUDON COUNTY ZONING 

RESOLUTION, ARTICLE 7. SECTION 7.080 VARIANCES, A. APPLICATION AND 
SECTION 7.090 AMENDMENTS TO RESOLUTION PURSUANT TO TENNESSEE 

CODE ANNOTATED, SECTION 13-7-105 

WHEREAS, the Loudon County Commission, in. accordance with Chapter Seven, §13-7-
105 of the Tennessee Code Annotated, may from time to time, amend the number, shape, boundary, 
area or any regulation of or within any district or districts, or any other provision of any zoning 
resolution, and 

WHEREAS, the Regional Planning Commission has forwarded a recommendation regarding 
the amendment to the Zoning Resolution of Loudon County, Tennessee, 

WHEREAS, a notice of public heating and a description of the resolution appeared in the 
Loudon County News Herald on July 31, 2019 consistent with the provisions of Tennessee Code 
Annotated, § 13-7-105; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Loudon County Commission that the 
Loudon County Zoning Resolution be amended by deleting Sections 7.080. Variances. A. Application 
and 7.090, Amendments to the Resolution, in their entireties and replacing them with the following: 

Section 1. 

Article 7. Section 7.080. Variances. 

A. Application: After written denial of a permit, a property owner may make 
application for a variance by the first day of the month in which the variance request 
will be reviewed by the Board of Zoning Appeals, using any form that may be made 
available by the Board of Zoning Appeals. Signage notifying the public about the 
request shall be posted on the property 7 days prior to the meeting that it will be 
reviewed. 

Section 2. 

Article 7. Section 7.090� Amendments to the Resolution. The regulations a1id the 
number or boundaries of districts established by this Resolution may be amended, 
supplemented, changed, modified, or repealed by the Loudon Cotmty Commission, but in 
accordance with the Tennessee enabling legislation, no amendment shall become 
effective unless it is first submitted to and approved by the Loudon County Regional 
Planning Commission or, if disapproved, shall receive a majority vote of the entire 
membership of the Loudon County Commission, except that when the zoning map is 
amended within the areas which fall within the planning region of Lenoir City or Loudon, 
such amendments must also be submitted to and receive a recommendation from the 
Lenoir City or the Loudon Regional Planning Commission. Application for zoning 
amendments must be submitted to the Loudon County Planning Department by the first 
day of the month in which the request for the amendment will be considered by the 
Planning Commission. Signage notifying the public about the request shall be posted on 
the property 7 days prior to the meeting that it will be reviewed. Before finally adopting 
any such amendment, the. County Commission shall hold a public hearing thereon, at 
least thirty (30) days' notice of the time and place of which shall be given by at least one 
(1) publication in a newspaper of general circulation in the County; and any such 
amendment shal1 be published at least once in the official newspaper of the County or in 
a newspaper of general circulation in the County. Rezoning reques�s submitted to the 
Planning Commission shall not be resubmitted if the request has been considered by the 
Planning Commission within 180 days. 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall take effect immediately, the public 
welfare requiring it. 

ATTEST: 



LOUDON COUNTY COMMISSION CHAIRMAN 

DATE: 

September 3, 2019 

APPROVED: LOUDON COUNTY MAYOR 

The votes on the question of approv.al of this Resolution by the Planning Commission on July 16, 
2019 are as follows: 

APPROVED: _1l 

DISJ):OVED: _0_ 

�� l!;r!ez6tJ 
ATTEST: SECRETARY LOUDON COUNTY 
REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 



(1) 
Public 
Hearings 

(2) 
Opening of 
Meeting 

(3) 
Roll Call 

LOUDON COUNTY COMMISSION 
LOUDON COUNTY, TENNESSEE 

Monday, August 5, 2019 

Courthouse Annex Building 

6 P.M. 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 

DRAFT COPY 
Not Approved 

1. A Resolution amending the Zoning Map of Loudon County, Tennessee pursuant to Chapter Seven, 
§13-7-105 of the Tennessee Code Annotated, to rezone approximately 2.19 acres from A-1 
(Agricultural-Forestry District) to C-1 (Rural Center District), Loudon County Tax Map 044, Parcel 
045.13, located at Hwy 321 and Hickory Valley Road, Lenoir City, TN, situated in the 3'd Legislative 
District 

2. A Resolution amending the Zoning Map of Loudon County, Tennessee pursuant to Chapter Seven, 
§13-7-105 of the Tennessee Code Annotated, to rezone approximately 20.18 acres from R-1 
(Suburban Residential District) to R-1 (Suburban Residential District) with Planned Unit 
Development (PUD) Overlay, 2.5 units per acre, 10616 East Coast Tellico Parkway, Tax Map 078, 
Parcel 004.00, situated in the 3'd Legislative District 

3. A Resolution amending the Zoning Map of Loudon County, Tennessee pursuant to Chapter Seven, 
§13-7-105 of the Tennessee Code Annotated, to rezone approximately 1.08 acres from C-2 
(General Commercial District) to C-1 (Rural Center District) Hwy 411 S, Tax Map 084, Parcels 
046.00 and 047.00, situated in the 3'd Legislative District 

BE IT REMEMBERED that the Board of Commissioners of Loudon County convened in regular 
session in Loudon, Tennessee on the 51h day of August, 2019. 

Commission Chairman Henry Cullen called the meeting to order at 6:01P.M. 

Commissioner David Meers opened the County Commission Meeting by leading the Pledge of 

Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America, and then he gave the Invocation. 

Upon Roll Call, the following Commissioners were present: Kelly Brewster, David Meers, Matthew 
Tinker, Bill Satterfield, Gary Whitfield, Henry Cullen, Harold Duff, Van Shaver, and Adam Waller 
(9) 



(4} 
Agenda 
Adoption 

(5} 
Minutes 
Approved 

Loudon County Commission Minutes, August 5, 2019, Page 2 

The following Commissioners were absent: Hurley (1) 

Thereupon Chairman Cullen announced the presence of a quorum. 

DRAFT COPY 
Not Approved 

Also present was the Honorable Mayor Buddy Bradshaw and Director of Accounts and Budgets, 

Tracy Blair. Chief Deputy Clerk Tammie Wampler was filling in for Deputy Clerk Christy Wampler. 

Chairman Cullen requested that the August OS, 2019 Agenda be adopted. Commissioner Shaver 

made a motion to adopt the August OS, 2019 Commission Agenda. The motion was seconded by 

Commissioner Tinker. 

Upon Voice Vote, the motion PASSED unanimously. 

Chairman Cullen requested that the June 24, 2019 Commission Meeting Minutes be accepted and 

approved with the following amendments: 

On Page# 2, Item# 9 Appropriations Resolution for FY 2019-2020, Amendment# 1 that the 

minutes be amended to state that Commissioner Hurley seconded the motion. 

On Page# 3, Amendment# 2 Appropriations Resolution for FY 2019-2020 (continued from 

Page 2, Item 9), that the minutes be amended to state that Commissioner Satterfield 
seconded the motion. 

On PageS, Amendment# 1 (continued from Page# 4, Item# 10 Tax Levy Resolution) that 

the minutes be amended to state that Commissioner Duff seconded the motion. 

-Also amended to state: Upon Roll Call Vote, the following Commissioners voted Aye: 

Duff and Hurley (2) 

-Also amended to state: The following Commissioners voted Nay: Shaver, Waller, 
Brewster, Meers, Satterfield, Whitfield, and Cullen (7) 

On Page# 10, Item# 24 Statutory Bond Michael Garren be amended to state: Chairman 

Cullen requested approval of a Statutory Bond for the new Interim Director of Schools 

Michael Garren. Commissioner Satterfield made a motion to approve the bond. 

Commissioner Brewster seconded the motion. 

Commissioner Shaver made a motion to accept and approve the June 24, 2019 Commission 

Meeting Minutes with the discussed amendments. The motion was seconded by Commissioner 

Brewster. 

Upon Voice Vote, the motion PASSED unanimously. 



(6} 
General 
Public 
Comments 

(7} 
Rezone Hwy 
321 & 
Hickory 
Valley Rd 

(8} 
Rezone 
1016 
East Coast 
Tellico 
Parkway 

(9} 
Rezone 
Hwy 4115 

Loudon County Commission Minutes, August 5, 2019, Page 3 

Chairman Cullen opened the floor for the comments by the General Public. The following people 
spoke: 

1. Gail Link 
2. Richard Anklin 

Chairman Cullen closed the floor for General Public comments. 

DRAFT COPY 
Not Approved 

Planning Director, laura Smith presented commission with a resolution amending the Zoning Map 
of loudon County, Tennessee pursuant to Chapter Seven, §13-7-105 of the Tennessee Code 
Annotated, to rezone approximately 2.19 acres from A-1 (Agricultural-Forestry District) to C-1 
(Rural Center District), Loudon County Tax Map 044, Parcel 045.13, located at Hwy 321 and Hickory 
Valley Road, Lenoir City, TN, situated in the 3'd Legislative District 

Commissioner Satterfield made a motion to approve the resolution and a second was made by 
Commissioner Whitfield. 

Upon Voice Vote, the motion PASSED unanimously 

RESOLUTION 08052019-A 

Planning Director, laura Smith presented commission with a resolution amending the Zoning Map 

of Loudon County, Tennessee pursuant to Chapter Seven, §13-7-105 of the Tennessee Code 
Annotated, to rezone approximately 20.18 acres from R-1 (Suburban Residential District) to R-1 
(Suburban Residential District) with Planned Unit Development (PUD) Overlay, 2.5 units per acre, 
10616 East Coast Tellico Parkway, Tax Map 078, Parcel 004.00, situated in the 3'd Legislative District 

Commissioner Satterfield made a motion to approve the resolution and a second was made by 
Commissioner Meers. 

Upon Voice Vote, the motion PASSED unanimously 

RESOlUTION 08052019-B 

Planning Director, laura Smith presented a resolution amending the Zoning Map of Loudon 
County, Tennessee pursuant to Chapter Seven, §13-7-105 of the Tennessee Code Annotated, to 
rezone approximately 1.08 acres from C-2 (General Commercial District) to C-1 (Rural Center 
District) Hwy 411 S, Tax Map 084, Parcels 046.00 and 047.00, situated in the 3'd Legislative District 

Commissioner Satterfield made a motion to approve the resolution and a second was made by 
Commissioner Tinker. 

Upon Voice Vote, the motion PASSED unanimously 
RESOLUTION 08052019-C 



(10) 
Commissioner 
Hurley's 
Residency 

(11) 
Budget 
Amendments 

(12) 
Monthly 
Reports 

(13) 
Noataries 

Loudon County Commission Minutes, August 5, 2019, Page 4 

Commissioner Shaver requested consideration of actions, if any, pertaining to Commissioner 
Hurley's residency. Commissioner Meers made a motion to take action with a (declatory judgement) 
to determine Commissioner Hurley's residency. After further discussion with the Commissioners, 
Commissioner Meers rescinded his motion and Commissioner Brewster made a motion that the 

District Attorney, Russell Johnson take action (quo warranto) to determine Commissioner Hurley's 
residency. The motion was seconded by Commissoner Whitfield. Chairman Cullen will submit a 
request to District Attorney, Russell Johnson. 

Upon a Roll Call Vote, the following Commissioners voted AYE: Whitfield, Cullen, Duff, Shaver, 
Waller, Brewster, Meers, Tinker, Satterfield (9) 

The following Commissioners voted NAY: (O ) 

The following Commissioners were absent: Hurley (1) 
EXHIBIT 08052019-D 

DRAFT COPY 
Not Approved 

Director of Accounts and Budgets, Tracy Blair requested consideration of recommendation to 
approve budget amendments in the Sheriff and Jail departments for revision in job classifications. 
Commissioner Shaver made a motion to approve the request and Commissioner Meers seconded 
the motion. 

Upon Roll Call Vote, the following commissioners AYE: Satterfield, Whitfield, Cullen, Duff, Shaver, 
Waller, Brewster, Meers (8) 

The following commissioners voted NAY: Tinker (1) 

The following commissioners were absent: Hurley (1) 

Director of Accounts and Budgets, Tracy Blair distributed the following Financial Reports: 
A. Financial Summary Statement ending July 2019 

EXHIBIT 08052019-E 
B. County General Fund 101 Year ending June 2020 

EXHIBIT 08052019-F 

Commissioner Meers made a motion that was seconded by Commissioner Brewster to approve 

the following notaries: 

Kelsey Adams, Stephanie Dawn Carter, Heather Doran, laura Gordon, Wesley Vernon Henderson, 
Cynthia lennex, Paul Howard Rogers, Anita Stallings, Anna Williams 

Upon Voice Vote, the motion PASSED unanimously. 
EXHIBIT 08052019-G 



(14) 
Adjournment 

Loudon County Commission Minutes, August 5, 2019, Page 5 

DRAFT COPY 
Not Approved 

There being no further business, a motion being duly made by Commissioner Shaver and seconded 
by Chairman Waller, the August OS, 2019 Loudon County Commission Meeting stood adjourned at 
6:56P.M. 

Loudon County Commission Chairman 

Attest: 

Loudon County Clerk 

Loudon County Mayor 



REsoLuTION OBo5cifDJq- 14 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF LOUDON COUNTY, 
TENNESSEE, PURSUANT TO CHAPTER SEVEN, §13-7-105 OF THE 

TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED, TO REZONE APPROXIMATELY 2.19 
ACRES FROM A-l.AGRICULTRIAL-FORESTRY DISTRICT TO C-1 RURAL 

CENTER DISTRICT, LOUDON COUNTY TAX MAP 044, PARCEL 045.13 
LOCATED AT HWY. 321 AND HICKORY VALLEY ROAD, LENOIR CITY, 

TN, SITUATED IN THE 3RD LEGISLATIVE DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, the Loudon County Commission, in accordanc� with Chapter Seven, § 13-7-105 of the 
Tennessee Code Annotated, may from time to time, amend the number, shape, boundary, area or any 
regulation of or within any district or districts, or any other provision of any zoning resolution, and; 

WHEREAS, the Regional Planning Commission has forwarded a recommendation regarding the 
amendment to the Zoning Map of Loudon County, Tennessee, and; 

WHEREAS, a notice of public hearing and a description of the resolution appeared in the Loudon 
County newspaper, the News Herald on June 26, 2019 consistent with the provisions of Tennessee 
Code Annotated, § 13-7-105, and the Loudon County Zoning Resolution, § 7.090. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Loudon County Commission that the Zoning 
Map of Loudon County, Tennessee be amended as follows: 

Located at Hwy. 321 and Hickory Valley Road, situated in the 3'd Legislative District, referenced by 
Tax Map 044, Parcel 045.13 be rezoned from A-1, Agricultural-Forestry District to C-1, Rural Center 
District as shown on the attached illustration, said illustration being made part of this Resolution. 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED1 that this Resolution shall take effect immediately,. the public 
welfare requiring it. 

ATTEST LOUDON COUNTY CHAIRMAN 

DATE: ____ _ 

APPROVED: LOUDON COUNTY MAYOR 

The votes on the question of approval ofthis Resolution by the Planning Commission are as 
follows: 

APPROVED: _ ___,.;9 __ _ 

DISAPPROVED: _,0'----

ATTEST: SECRETARY LOUDON COUNTY 
REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

Dated:------------



Loudon County- Parcel: 044 045.013 

County: Loudon 
Owner: OHARA PROPERTIES lNG 
Address: HWY 321 S 25884 
Parcel Number: 044 045.013 
Deeded Acreage: 2.185 
Calculated Acreage: 0 
Date o( Imagery: 2015 



RESOLUTION {fl;()Sd,O/Cf- {3 
A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF LOUDON COUNTY, 

TENNESSEE, PURSUANT TO CHAPTER SEVEN, §13-7-105 OF THE 
TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED, TO REZONE APPROXIMATELY 20.18 

ACRES FROM R-1 (SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) TO R-1 
SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH PLANNED UNIT 

DEVELOPMENT (PUD) OVERLAY, 2.5 UNITS PER ACRE, 10616 EAST 
COAST TELLICO PARKWAY, TAX MAP 078, PARCEL 004.00, SITUATED IN 

THE 3rd LEGISLATIVE DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, the Loudon County Commission, in accordance with Chapter Seven, §13-7-105 of the Tennessee Code 
annotated� may from time to time, amend the number, shape, boundary, area or any regulation of or within any district or 
districts, or any other provision of any zoning resolution, and 

WHEREAS, the Regional Planning Commission has forwarded a recommendation regarding the amendment to the 
Zoning Map of Loudon County. Tennessee, 

WHEREAS, a notice of public hearing and a description of the resolution appeared in the Loudon County newspaper, 
News Herald on May 29 2019 consistent with the provisions of Tennessee Code Annotated, § !'3-7-1 05, and 

NOW, THEREFORE; DE IT RESOLVED by the Loudon County Commission that the Zoning Map of Loudon 
Countv. Tennessee be amended as follows: 

Located at 10616 East Coast Tellico Parkway situated in the 3'd Legislative District, referenced by Tax Map 078, Parcel 
004.00, be rezoned from R-1 (Suburban Residential District) to R-1 (Suburban Residential. District with Planned Unit 
Development (PUD overlay) 2.5 units per acre, being specifically shown on the attached illustrations. 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall take effect immediately, the public welfare requiring it. 

ATTEST: 

LOUDON COUNTY CHAIRMAN 

DATE: ___ _ 

APPROVED: LOUDON COUNTY MAYOR 

The votes on the question of approval of this Resolution by the Planning Commission are as follows: 

APPROVED: .lQ_ 

DISAPPROVED: I 

a/Aj�� J m� JhAJ 
ATTEST: SECRETARY LOUDON COUNTY 
REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
Dated: 2019 



Loudon County- Tax Map: 078 Parcel: 004.00 

County: Loudon 
Owner: lAUR EL PROPERTIES 
Address: EASTCOASTTELLICO PKWY 10616 
Parcel Number: 078 004.00 
Deeded Acreage: 20.18 
Calculated Acreage: 0 
Date of Imagery: 2015 



RESOLUTION OC605/)lJ/q -C.. 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF LOUDON COUNTY, 
TENNESSEE, PURSUANT TO CHAPTER SEVEN, §13-7-105 OF TilE TENNESSEE 

CODE ANNOTATED, TO REZONE APPROXIMATELY 1.08 ACRES FROM C-2 
(GENERAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT) TO C-1 (RURAL CENTER DISTRICT) HWY 

411S, TAX MAP 084, PARCELS 046.00 AND 047.00, SITUATED IN THE 3'� 

LEGISLATIVE DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, the Loudon County Commission, in accordance with Chapter Seven, § 13-7-1 OS of the 
Tennessee Code Annotated, may from time to time, amend the number, shape, bounda1y, area or any regulation 
of or within any district or districts, or any other provision of any zoning resolution, and 

WHEREAS, the Regional Planning Commission has forwarded a recommendation regarding the amendment 
to the Zoning Map of Loudon County, Tennessee, 

WHEREAS, a notice of public hearing .and a description of the resolution appeared in the Loudon County 
newspaper, News Herald on May 29. 2019 consistent with the provisions of Tennessee Code Annotated, § 13-7-
lOS,and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Loudon County Commission that the Zoning Map of 
Loudon County, Tennessee be amended as follows: 

Located at 7409 and 7417 Hwy. 411S situated in the 3'd Legislative District, referenced byTax Map 084, 
Parcels 046 .. 00 and 047.00, be rezoned from C-2 (General Commercial District) to C-1 (Rural Center District), 
being specifically shown on the attached illustrations. 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall take effect immediately, the public welfare 
requiring it. 

ATTEST: 

LOUDON COUNTY CHAIRMAN 

DATE: 

July 1,2019 

APPROVED: LOUDON COUNTY MAYOR 

The votes on the question of approval of this Resolution by the Planning Commission are as follows: 

APPROVED: _11_ 
D�PPROVED: 0 

fzlfiufic 0/rlol.aa-J 
ATTEST: SECRETARY LOUDON COUNTY 
REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
Dated: 2019 



Loudon County- Tax Map 084 Parcel 046.00 

County : Loudon 
Owner: HYDE MITCHELL 
Address: HWY 411 S 7417 
Parcel Number. 084 046.00 
Deeded Acreage: 0.53 
Calculated Acreage: 0.53 



Loudon County- Tax Map 084 Parcel 047.00 

County: Loudon 
Owner. HYDE MITCHELL 
Address: HWY 411 S 7409 
Parcel Number: 084 047.00 
Deeded Acreage: 0.55 
Calculated Acreage: 0.55 



EXHIBIT 08052019-D 

August 5, 2019 

As presented by Commissioner Shaver at the August 51h County Commission meeting - Consideration of 

actions, if any, pertaining to Commissioner Hurley's Residency 

As of the August 51h, 2019 Loudon County Commission meeting the vote was in favor by all commissioners (9) 

Cullen, Duff, Shaver, Waller, Brewster, Meers, Tinker, Satterfield, Whitfield to go with the Quo Warranto 

recommendation from the five options presented to the county commission by Attorney Bob Bowman. 

County Commission unanimously voted in favor to adopt a resolution asking District Attorney Russell Johnson, 

to file action to determine Commissioner Hurley's residency. 

Henry Cullen 

Chairman- Loudon County Commission 



Template Name: LGC Defined 
Created by: LGC 

101 General 

Account Description 

Revenues 

40110 Current Property Tax 

40120 Trustee's Collections - Prior Year 

40125 Trustee Collection-Bankruptcy 
40130 Cir Clk/Cik & Master Collections-Pr Yr 

40140 Interest And Penalty 

40163 Payments In Lieu Of Taxes - Other 
40210 Local Option Sales Tax 

40220 Hotel/Motel Tax 

40250 Litigation Tax - General 
40260 Litigation Tax - Special Purpose 

40270 Business Tax 

40275 Mixed Drink Tax 

40320 Bank Excise Tax 

40330 Wholesale Beer Tax 

41120 Animal Registration 

41140 Cable TV Franchise 

41510 Beer Permits 

41520 Building Permits 
41590 Other Permits 

42151 Interpreter Fee 

42180 DUI Treatment Fines 
42190 Data Entry Fee - Circuit Court 

42191 Courtroom Security Fee 

42210 Fines 

42220 Officers Costs 

42240 Drug Control Fines 

42250 Jail Fees 

42290 Data Entry Fee - Criminal Court 

42292 Victims Assistance Assessments 

42310 Fines 

42320 Officers Costs 

42330 Games And Fish Fines 

42340 Drug Control Fines 
42350 Jail Fees 

42380 DUI Treatment Fines 

42390 Data Entry Fee - General Sessions 
42391 Courtroom Security Fee 

42392 Victims Assistance Assessments 

loudon County Finance 
Summary Financial Statement 

- - . 

Budget Estimate 

10,538,579.00 

130,000.00 

4,200.00 

73,000.00 

33,000.00 

532,567.00 

265,100.00 

440,000.00 

100,000.00 

290,000.00 

536,400.00 

29,000.00 

21,022.00 

95,000.00 

63,500.00 

332,000.00 

3,500.00 

415,330.00 

35,430.00 

250.00 

2,600.00 

1,200.00 

5,000.00 

10,000.00 

20,000.00 

2,200.00 

1,560.00 

1,000.00 

3,450.00 

45,000.00 

113,000.00 

500.00 

7,500.00 

5,200.00 

15,000.00 

18,000.00 

100,000.00 

18,000.00 

July 2019 

Year-To-Date 

Actual 

29,237.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

(699.23) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

(5,800.00) 
(4,937.48) 

0.00 

(39,214.00) 
(2,384.00) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

. - - - - .. -·· - ·- -

0/o of Budget 

-0.28 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.16 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

9.13 % 

1.49 % 

0.00 % 

9.44 % 

6.73 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

EXHIBIT 08052019-E 
User: Tracy Blair 
Date/Time: 8/5/2019 5:26 PM 

Page 1 of 23 

Month-To-Date 
--- -Estimate 

Avg/Mth 

--- -- - - · -

878,214.92 

10,833.33 

350.00 

6,083.33 

2,750.00 

44,380.58 

22,091.67 

36,666.67 

8,333.33 

24,166.67 

44,700.00 

2,416.67 

1,751.83 

7,916.67 

5,291.67 

27,666.67 

291.67 

34,610.83 

2,952.50 

20.83 

216.67 

100.00 

416.67 

833.33 

1,666.67 

183.33 

130.00 

83.33 

287.50 

3,750.00 

9,416.67 

41.67 

625.00 

433.33 

1,250.00 

1,500.00 

8,333.33 

1,500.00 

-- --- --- -- ---- ---

Actual 0/o of Avg 

29,237.00 -3.33 % 

0.00 0.00 % 

0.00 0.00 % 
0.00 0.00 % 

0.00 0.00 % 

0.00 0.00 % 
0.00 0.00 % 

(699.23) 1.91 % 

0.00 0.00 % 
0.00 0.00 % 

0.00 0.00 % 

0.00 0.00 % 
0.00 0.00 % 

0.00 0.00 % 

(5,800.00) 109.61 % 
(4,937.48) 17.85 % 

0.00 0.00 % 

(39,214.00) 113.30 % 
(2,384.00) 80.75 % 

0.00 0.00 % 

0.00 0.00 % 
0.00 0.00 % 

0.00 0.00 % 

0.00 0.00 % 
0.00 0.00 % 

0.00 0.00 % 

0.00 0.00 % 

0.00 0.00 % 

0.00 0.00 % 

0.00 0.00 % 
0.00 0.00 % 

0.00 0.00 % 

0.00 0.00 % 
0.00 0.00 % 

0.00 0.00 % 

0.00 0.00 % 
0.00 0.00 % 

0.00 0.00 % 



Template Name: LGC Defined 
Created by: LGC 

101 General 

Account Description 

42410 Fines 

42490 Data Entry Fee - Juvenile Court 

42520 Officers Costs 

42530 Data Entry Fee - Chancery Court 

42591 Courtroom Security Fee 

42610 Fines 

43370 Telephone Commissions 

43392 Data Processing Fee -Register 

43394 Data Processing Fee - Sheriff 

43395 Sex Offender Registraion Fee 

43396 Data Processing Fee - County Clerk 

44110 Investment Income 

44120 Lease/Rentals 

44130 Sale Of Materials And Supplies 

44131 Commissary Sales 

44140 Sale Of Maps 

44160 Retirees' Insurance Payments 

44161 Cobra Insurance Payments 

44170 Miscellaneous Refunds 

44180 Expenditure Credits 

44530 Sale Of Equipment 

44570 Contributions & Gifts 

45510 County Clerk 

45520 Circuit Court Clerk 

45540 General Sessions Court Clerk 

45550 Clerk And Master 

45580 Register 

45590 Sheriff 

45610 Trustee 

46110 Juvenile Services Program 

46140 Aging Programs 

46210 Law Enforcement Training Programs 

46310 Health Department Programs 

46390 Other Health And Welfare Grants 

46820 Income Tax 

46830 Beer Tax 

46835 Vehicle Certificate Of lltle Fees 

46840 Alcoholic Beverage Tax 

46852 State Revenue Sharing-

Loudon County Finance 
Summary Financial Statement 

. . 

Budget Estimate 

1,700.00 

673.00 

33,000.00 

13,900.00 

2,580.00 

5,000.00 

50,000.00 

21,000.00 

10,000.00 

3,000.00 

3,000.00 

20,000.00 

2,600.00 

2,200.00 

16,000.00 

500.00 

61,550.00 

1,949.00 

3,583.00 

0.00 

500.00 

21,000.00 

483,000.00 

95,000.00 

428,250.00 

60,000.00 

328,000.00 

41,000.00 

858,000.00 

10,000.00 

13,528.00 

25,800.00 

406,400.00 

20,000.00 
400,000.00 

20,000.00 

9,000.00 

64,975.00 

40,000.00 

July 2019 

Year-To-Date 
-···� 

· -·· - ·-

Actual 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

(250.00) 

(150.00) 

0.00 

0.00 

(10,550.60) 

(493.23) 

0.00 

(1,255.80) 

0.00 

(1,144.00) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

(20,000.00) 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

.. - -

%of Budget 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

9.62 % 

6.82 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

17.14 % 

25.31 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

5.45 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

100.00 % 
0.00% 
0.00 % 
0.00% 
0.00 % 

0.00 % 

User: Tracy Blair 
Date/Time: 8/5/2019 5:26 PM 

Page 2 of 23 

Month-To-Date 
·- -· Estimate ·· ·· . - -·- ·-· · --· · --· 

Avg/Mth Actual 0/o of Avg 

141.67 0.00 0.00 % 

56.08 0.00 0.00 % 

2,750.00 0.00 0.00 % 

1,158.33 0.00 0.00 % 
215.00 0.00 0.00 % 
416.67 0.00 0.00 % 

4,166.67 0.00 0.00 % 
1,750.00 0.00 0.00 % 

833.33 0.00 0.00 % 
250.00 0.00 0.00 % 
250.00 0.00 0.00 % 

1,666.67 0.00 0.00 % 
216.67 (250.00) 115.38 % 
183.33 (150.00) 81.82 % 

1,333.33 0.00 0.00 % 
41.67 0.00 0.00 % 

5,129.17 (10,S50.60) 205.70 % 
162.42 (493.23) 303.68 % 

298.58 0.00 0.00 % 
0.00 (1,255.80) 0.00 % 

41.67 0.00 0.00 % 
1,750.00 (1,144.00) 65.37 % 

40,250.00 0.00 0.00 % 

7,916.67 0.00 0.00 % 

35,687.50 0.00 0.00 % 
5,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 

27,333.33 0.00 0.00 % 

3,416.67 0.00 0.00 % 
71,500.00 0.00 0.00 % 

833.33 0.00 0.00 % 
1,127.33 0.00 0.00 % 
2,150.00 0.00 0.00 % 

33,866.67 0.00 0.00 % 

1,666.67 (20,000.00) 1,200.00 % 
33,333.33 0.00 0.00% 

1,666.67 0.00 0.00% 
750.00 0.00 0.00% 

5,414.58 0.00 0.00% 
3,333.33 0.00 0.00 % 



Template Name: LGC Defined loudon County Finance User: Tracy Blair 
Created by: LGC Summary Financial Statement Date/Time: 8/5/2019 5:26 PM 

July 2019 Page 3 of 23 

101 General Year-To-Date Month-To-Date 
.. . ··Estimate · · 

Account Description 
Budget Estimate Actual 0/o of Budget Avg/Mth Actual 0/o of Avg 

46915 Contracted Prisoner Board 90,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 7,500.00 0.00 0.00 % 

46960 Registrar's Salary Supplement 15,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 1,250.00 0.00 0.00 % 

46970 State Shared Sales Tax - Cities 6,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 500.00 0.00 0.00 % 

46980 Other State Grants 180,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 15,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 

46990 Other State Revenues 52,000.00 0.00 0,00 % 4,333.33 0.00 0.00 % 

47220 Civil Defense Reimbursement 55,500.00 0.00 0.00 % 4,625.00 0.00 0.00 % 

47235 Homeland Security Grants 13,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 1,083.33 0.00 0.00 % 

47590 Other Federal Through State 39,067.00 0.00 0.00 % 3,255.58 0.00 0.00 % 

48130 Contributions 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 416.67 0.00 0.00 % 

48140 Contracted Services 25,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 2,083.33 0.00 0.00 % 

48610 Donations 16,000.00 (2,205.99) 13.79 % 1,333.33 (2,205.99) 165.45 % 

49800 Transfers In 55,546.00 0.00 0.00 % 4,628.83 0.00 0.00 % 

Total Revenues 18,435,889.00 (59,847.33) 0.32% 1,536,324.08 (59,847.33) 3.90% 

Expenditures 

51100 County Commission (207,782.00) 23,518.24 11.32 % (17,315.17) 23,518.24 135.82 % 

51210 Board Of Equalization (2,600.00) 0.00 0.00 % (216.67) 0.00 0.00 % 

51220 Beer Board (5,000.00) 0.00 0.00 % (416.67) 0.00 0.00 % 

51240 Other Boards And Committees (7,150.00) 0.00 0.00 % (595.83) 0.00 0.00 % 

51300 County Mayor/Executive (237,726.00) 17,944.63 7.55 % (19,810.50) 17,944.63 90.58 % 

51310 Personnel Office (45,802.00) 1,959.28 4.28 % (3,816.83) 1,959.28 51.33 % 

51400 County Attorney (155,000.00) 30,000.00 19.35 % (12,916.67) 30,000.00 232.26 % 

51500 Election Commission (906,469.00) 18,776.33 2.07 % (75,539.08) 18,776.33 24.86 % 

51600 Register Of Deeds (303,452.00) 39,336.18 12.96 % (25,287.67) 39,336.18 155.55 % 

51720 Planning (151,242.00) 11,294.04 7.47 % (12,603.50) 11,294.04 89.61 % 

51750 Codes Compliance (316,152.00) 16,482.68 5.21 % (26,346.00) 16,482.68 62.56 % 

51760 Geographical Information Systems (68,598.00) 8,115.80 11.83 % (5,716.50) 8,115.80 141.97 % 

51800 County Buildings (1,278,624.00) 247,986.50 19.39 % (106,552.00) 247,986.50 232.74 % 

51900 Other General Administration (302,500.00) 270,404.00 89.39 % (25,208.33) 270,404.00 1,072.68 % 

51910 Preservation Of Records (1,000.00) 0.00 0.00 % (83.33) 0.00 0.00 % 

52100 Accounting And Budgeting (656,361.00) 79,687.38 12.14 % (54,696.75) 79,687.38 145.69 % 

52200 Purchasing (259,726.00) 16,793.84 6.47 % (21,643.83) 16,793.84 77.59 % 

52300 Property Assessor's Office ( 430, 763.00) 71,361.65 16.57 % (35,896.92) 71,361.65 198.80 % 

52400 County Trustee's Office (378,668.00) 58,751.89 15.52 % (31,555.67) 58,751.89 186.18 % 

52500 County Clerk's Office (645,050.00) 54,940.07 8.52 % (53,754.17) 54,940.07 102.21 % 

52600 Data Processing (190,253.00) 10,111.79 5.31 % (15,854.42) 10,111.79 63.78 % 

53100 Circuit Court (451,991.00) 28,816.05 6.38 % (37,665.92) 28,816.05 76.50 % 

53300 General Sessions Court (695,227.00) 70,453.77 10.13 % (57,935.58) 70,453.77 121.61 % 

53310 General Sessions Judge (471,761.00) 37,406.14 7.93 % (39,313.42) 37,406.14 95.15 % 



Template Name: LGC Defined Loudon County Finance User: Tracy Blair 
Created by: LGC Summary Financial Statement Date/Time: 8/5/2019 5:26 PM 

July 2019 Page 4 of 23 

101 General Year-To-Date Month-To-Date 
· - -- -estimate - . - ·-·- -·-·- - · - ---

Account Description 
Budget Estimate Actual %of Budget AvgjMth Actual 0/o of Avg 

53400 Chancery Court (282,236.00) 21,664.53 7.68 % (23,519.67) 21,664.53 92.11 % 

53500 Juvenile Court (316,508.00) 30,661.75 9 .69 % (26,375.67) 30,661.75 116.25 % 

53700 Judicial Commissioners (66,400.00) 3,824.73 5.76 % (5,533.33) 3,824.73 69.12 % 

53900 Other Administration Of Justice (18,760.00) 79.00 0.42 % (1,563.33) 79.00 5.05 % 

53920 Courtroom Security (2,000.00) 0.00 0.00 % (166.67) 0.00 0.00 % 

-53930 Victim Assistance Programs (22,000.00) 0.00 0.00 % (1,833.33) 0.00 0.00 % 

541 10 Sheriffs Department (5,300,376.00) 616,904.43 1 1 .64 % ( 441,698.00) 616,904.43 139.67 % 

54120 Special Patrols (20,000.00) 0.00 0.00 % (1,666.67) 0.00 0.00 % 

54130 Traffic Control (22,500.00) 2,212.23 9.83 % (1,875.00) 2,212.23 1 17.99 % 

54160 Administration Of The Sexual Offender (1,500.00) 0.00 0.00 % (125.00) 0.00 0.00 % 

54210 Jail (4,285,006.00) 430,604.45 10.05 % (357,083.83) 430,604.45 120:59 % 

54320 Rural Fire Protection (240,000.00) 0.00 0.00 % (20,000.00) 0.00 0.00 % 

54410 Civil Defense (221,717.00) 18,486.63 8.34 % (18,476.42) 18,486.63 100.06 % 

54610 County Coroner/Medical Examiner (109,000.00) 25,000.00 22.94 % (9,083.33) 25,000.00 275.23 % 

54900 Other Public Safety (541,500.00) 0.00 0.00 % (45, 125.00) 0.00 0.00 % 

55110 Local Health Center (42,241.00) 11,555.15 27.36 % (3,520.08) 1 1,555.15 328.26 % 

55120 Rabies And Animal Control (455,898.00) 85,732.91 18.81 % (37,991.50) 85,732.91 225.66 % 

55190 Other Local Health Services (406,400.00) 17,101.67 4.21 % (33,866.67) 17,101.67 50.50 % 

55900 Other Public Health And Welfare (20,000.00) 0.00 0.00 % (1,666.67) 0.00 0.00 % 

56100 Adult Activities (3,000.00) 0.00 0.00 % (250.00) 0.00 0.00 % 

56300 Senior Citizens Assistance (271,188.00) 17,671.12 6.52 % (22,599.00) 17,671 .12 78.19 % 

57100 Agricultural Extension Service (178,389.00) 1 19.71 0.07 % (14,865.75) 1 19.71 0.81 % 

57500 Soil Conservation (21,335.00) 549.95 2.58 % (1,777.92) 549.95 30.93 % 

57700 Flood Control (2,000.00) 0.00 0.00 % (166.67) 0.00 0.00 % 

57800 Storm Water Management (4,000.00) 0.00 0.00 % (333.33) 0.00 0.00 % 

58110 Tourism (145,000.00) 0.00 0.00 % (12,083.33) 0.00 0.00 % 

58120 Industrial Development (166,430.00) 3,884.48 2.33 % (13,869.17) 3,884.48 28.01 % 

58130 Housing And Urban Development (6,750.00) 0.00 0.00 % (562.50) 0.00 0.00 % 

58300 Veteran's Services (48,761.00) 3,352.95 6.88 % (4,063.42) 3,352.95 82.52 % 

58500 Contributions To Other Agencies (83,100.00) 0.00 0.00 % (6,925.00) 0.00 0.00 % 

58600 Employee Benefits (2,500.00) 398,671.00 15,946.84 % (208.33) 398,671.00 11,362.08 % 

58900 Miscellaneous (330,000.00) 0.00 0.00 % (27,500.00) 0.00 0.00 % 

82110 General Government (50,000.00) 0.00 0.00 % (4,166.67) 0.00 0.00 % 

Total Expenditures (21,855,392.00) 2,802,216.95 12.82% (1,821,282.67) 2,802,216.95 153.86% 

Total 101 General (3,419,503.00) 2,742,369.62 80.20% (284,958.58) 2,742,369.62 962.37% 



Template Name: LGC Defined 
Created by: LGC 

112 Courthouse & Jail Maintenance 

Account 

Revenues 

40266 

Expenditures 

58900 

99100 

Total 112 

Description 

Litigation Tax-Jail, Wrkhse, 

Total Revenues 

Miscellaneous 

Transfers Out 

Total Expenditures 

Courthouse & Jail Maintenance 

Loudon County Finance 
Summary Financial Statement 

July 2019 

Year-To-Date 

Budget Estimate Actual %of Budget 

100,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 

100,000.00 0.00 0.00% 

(2,000.00) 0.00 0.00 % 

(125,000.00) 0.00 0.00 % 

(127,000.00) 0.00 0.00% 

(27,000.00) 0.00 0.00% 

User: 
Date/Time: 

Month-To-Date 
-Estimate· -· 

Avg/Mth Actual 

8,333.33 

8,333.33 

(166.67) 

(10,416.67) 

(10,583.33) 

(2,250.00) 

Tracy Blair 
8/5/2019 5:26 PM 

Page 5 of 23 

0/o of Avg 

0.00 0.00 % 

0.00 0.00% 

0.00 0.00 % 

0.00 0.00 % 

0.00 0.00% 

0.00 0.00% 



Template Name: LGC Defined 
Created by: LGC 

114 Law Library 

Account 

Revenues 

40260 

Expenditures 

56500 

58900 

Total 114 

Description 

Litigation Tax - Special Purpose 

Total Revenues 

Libraries 

Miscellaneous 

Total Expenditures 

Law Library 

Loudon County Finance 
Summary Financial Statement 

July 2019 

Year-To-Date 

Budget Estimate Actual %of Budget 

4,500.00 0.00 0.00 % 

4,500.00 0.00 0.00% 

(4,600.00) 79.99 1.74 % 

(150.00) 0.00 0.00 % 

(4,750.00} 79.99 1.68% 

(250.00) 79.99 32.00% 

User: 
Date/Time: 

Tracy Blair 
8/5/2019 5:26 PM 

Page 6 of 23 

Month-To-Date 
·Estimate --- · 

Avg/Mth Actual 0/o of Avg 

375.00 0.00 0.00 % 

375.00 0.00 0.00 Ofo 

(383.33) 79.99 20.87 % 

(12.50) 0.00 0.00 % 

(395.83) 79.99 20.21% 

(20.83} 79.99 383.95% 



Template Name: LGC Defined Loudon County Finance User: Tracy Blair 
Created by: LGC Summary Financial Statement Date/Time: 8/5/2019 5:26 PM 

July 2019 Page 7 of 23 

115 Public Library Year-To-Date Month-To-Date 

Budget Estimate 
· Estimate 

Account Description Actual Ofo of Budget Avg/Mth Actual % of Avg 

Revenues 

40110 Current Property Tax 308,868.00 1,027.00 -0.33 % 25,739.00 1,027.00 -3.99 % 

40120 Trustee's Collections - Prior Year 3,500.00 0.00 0.00 % 291.67 0.00 0.00 % 

40125 Trustee's Collections - Bankruptcy 200.00 0.00 0.00 % 16.67 0.00 0.00 % 

40130 Cir Clk/Cik & Master Collections-Pr Yr 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 166.67 0.00 0.00 % 

40140 Interest And Penalty 900.00 0.00 0.00 % 75.00 0.00 0.00 % 

40163 Payments In Lieu Of Taxes - Other 10,300.00 0.00 0.00 % 858.33 0.00 0.00 % 

40320 Bank Excise Tax 400.00 0.00 0.00 % 33.33 0.00 0.00 % 

43350 Copy Fees 4,950.00 (369.80) 7.47 % 412.50 (369.80) 89.65 % 

43360 Library Fees 4,600.00 (294.84) 6.41 % 383.33 (294.84) 76.91 % 

44130 Sale Of Materials And Supplies 150.00 0.00 0.00 % 12.50 0.00 0.00 % 

44160 Retirees' Insurance Payments 1,171.00 (4,406.28) 376.28 % 97.58 (4,406.28) 4,515.40 % 

44570 Contributions & Gifts 275.00 (52.35) 19.04 % 22.92 (52.35) 228.44 % 

48130 Contributions 31,415.00 0.00 0.00 % 2,617.92 0.00 0.00 % 

48610 Donations 3,000.00 (13,700.00) 456.67 % 250.00 (13,700.00) 5,480.00 % 

Total Revenues 371,729.00 (17,796.27) 4.79% 30,977.42 (17,796.27) 57.45% 

Expenditures 

56500 Libraries (332,206.00) 48,052.52 14.46 % (27,683.83) 48,052.52 173.58 % 

58900 Miscellaneous (6,500.00) 0.00 0.00 % (541.67) 0.00 0.00 % 

Total Expenditures (338,706.00) 48,052.52 14.19% (28,225.50) 48,052.52 170.25% 

Total 115 Public Library 33,023.00 30,256.25 -91.62% 2,751.92 30,256.25 -1,099.46 



Template Name: LGC Defined 
Created by: LGC 

116 Solid Waste/Sanitation 

Account Description 

Revenues 

40210 Local Option Sales Tax 

44145 Sale Of Recycled Materials 

44160 Retirees' Insurance Payments 

46170 Solid Waste Grants 

46430 Litter Program 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 

55720 Sanitation Education/Information 

55732 Convenience Centers 

Total Expenditures 

Total 116 Solid Waste/Sanitation 

Loudon County Finance 
Summary Financial Statement 

· - - ·- . 

Budget Estimate 

656,260.00 

131,000.00 

82.00 

50,000.00 

49,100.00 

886,442.00 

(49,100.00) 

(809,285.00) 

(858,385.00) 

28,057.00 

July 2019 

Year-To-Date 
... 

Actual %of Budget 

0.00 0.00 % 

0.00 0.00 % 

(91.50) 111.59 % 

0.00 0.00 % 

0.00 0.00 % 

(91.50) 0.01% 

8,000.00 16.29 % 

247,783.80 30.62 % 

255,783.80 29.80% 

255,692.30 -911.33% 

User: Tracy Blair 
Date/Time: 8/5/2019 5:26 PM 

Page 8 of 23 

Month-To-Date 
· ·  ·· - - Estimate 

AvgfMth Actual 0/o of Avg 

54,688.33 0.00 0.00 % 

10,916.67 0.00 0.00 % 

6.83 (91.50) 1,339.02 % 
4,166.67 0.00 0.00 % 

4,091.67 0.00 0.00 % 

73,870.17 (91.50) 0.12% 

(4,091.67) 8,000.00 195.52 % 

(67,440.42) 247,783.80 367.41 % 

(71,532.08) 255,783.80 357.58% 

2,338.08 255,692.30 



Template Name: LGC Defined 
Created by: LGC 

119 Industrial/Economic Development 

Account 

Revenues 

44120 

Expenditures 

58120 

Total 119 

Description 

Lease/Rentals 

Total Revenues 

Industrial Development 

Total Expenditures 

Industrial/Economic Development 

-·· 

Loudon County Finance 
Summary Financial Statement 

July 2019 

Year-To-Date 

Budget Estimate Actual %of Budget 

21,295.00 (2,650.00) 12.44 % 

21,295.00 (2,650.00) 12.44% 

(12,300.00) 0.00 0.00 % 

(12,300.00) 0.00 0.00% 

8,995.00 (2,650.00) 29.46% 

User: 
Date/Time: 

Tracy Blair 
8/5/2019 5:26 PM 

Page 9 of 23 

Month-To-Date 
--·-Estimate 

Avg/Mth Actual 0/o of Avg 

1,774.58 (2,650.00) 149.33 % 

1,774.58 (2,650.00) 149.33% 

(1,025.00) 0.00 0.00 % 

(1,025.00) 0.00 0.00% 
--

749.58 (2,650.00) 353.53% 



Template Name: LGC Defined 
Created by: LGC 

122 Drug Control 

Account 

Revenues 

42240 

42340 

42865 

42910 

44570 

Expenditures 

54150 

Total 122 

Description 

Drug Control Fines 

Drug Control Fines 

Drug Task Force Forfeitures And 

Proceeds From Confiscated Prope"rty 

Contributions & Gifts 

Total Revenues 

Drug Enforcement 

Total Expenditures 

Drug Control 

Loudon County Finance 
Summary Financial Statement 

July 2019 

Year-To-Date 

Budget Estimate Actual %of Budget 

15,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 

6,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 

25,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 

25,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 

20,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 

91,000.00 0.00 0.00% 

(135,150.00) 25,808.46 19.10 % 

(135,150.00) 25,808.46 19.10% 

(44,150.00) 25,808.46 58.46% 

User: 
Date/Time: 

Tracy Blair 
8/5/2019 5 : 26 PM 

Page 10 of 23 

Month-To-Date 
····Estimate - · 

Avg/Mth Actual 0/o of Avg 

1,250.00 0.00 0.00 % 

500.00 0.00 0.00 % 

2,083.33 0.00 0.00 % 
2,083.33 0.00 0.00 % 

1,666.67 0.00 0.00 % 

7,583.33 0.00 0.00% 

(11,262.50) 25,808.46 229.15 % 

(11,262.50) 25,808.46 229.15% 

(3,679.17) 25,808.46 701.48% 



Template Name: LGC Defined 
Created by: LGC 

128 other Special Revenue Fund 

Account 

Revenues 

47700 

Expenditures 

54150 

Total 128 

Description 

Asset Forfeiture Funds 

Total Revenues 

Drug Enforcement 

Total Expenditures 

Other Special Revenue Fund 

- . -

Loudon County Finance 
Summary Financial Statement 

July 2019 

.. -
Year-To-Date 

Budget Estimate Actual %of Budget 

1,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 

1,000.00 0.00 0.00% 

(1,000.00) 0.00 0.00 % 

(1,000.00) 0.00 0.00% 

0.00 0.00 100.00% 

User: 
Date/Time: 

Month-To-Date 
· ·Estimate· 
Avg/Mth Actual 

83.33 

83.33 

(83.33) 

(83.33) 
---

0.00 

Tracy Blair 
8/5/2019 5 :26 PM 

Page 11 of 23 

0/o of Avg 

0.00 0.00 % 

0.00 0.00% 

0.00 0.00 % 

0.00 0.00% 

o.oo 0.00% 



Template Name: LGC Defined Loudon County Finance 
Created by: LGC Summary Financial Statement 

July 2019 

131 Highway/Public Works Year-To-Date 
·--· 

Account Description 
Budget Estimate Actual %of Budget 

Revenues 

40110 Current Property Tax 548,903.00 1,810.00 -0.33 % 

40120 Trustee's Collections - Prior Year 15,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 

40125 Bankruptcy 540.00 0.00 0.00 % 

40130 Cir Clk/Cik & Master Collections-Pr Yr 5,500.00 0.00 0.00 % 

40140 Interest And Penalty 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 

40163 Payments In Lieu Of Taxes - Other 18,155.00 0.00 0.00 % 

40280 Mineral Severance Tax 60,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 

40320 Bank Excise Tax 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 

44130 Sale Of Materials And Supplies 15,000.00 (7,580.00) 50.53 % 

44160 Retirees' Insurance Payments 25,535.00 (3,358.13) 13.15 % 

44170 Miscellaneous Refunds 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 

44530 Sale Of Equipment 8,000.00 0.00 0.00 %  

46410 Bridge Program 87,808.00 0.00 0.00 % 

46420 State Aid Program 412,833.00 0.00 0.00 % 

46920 Gasoline And Motor Fuel Tax 2,263,671.00 0.00 0.00 % 

46930 Petroleum Special Tax 31,458.00 0.00 0.00 % 

47590 Other Federal Through State 947,618.00 0.00 0.00 % 

Total Revenues 4,446,021.00 (9,128.13) 0.21 % 

Expenditures 

61000 Administration (852,211.00) 56,358.58 6.61 % 

62000 Highway And Bridge Maintenance (672,500.00) 597,928.00 88.91 % 

63100 Operation And Maintenance Of (304,500.00) 231,650.00 76.08 % 

65000 Other Charges (185,100.00) 135,152.84 73.02 % 

66000 Employee Benefits ( 477 ,282.00) 79,977.03 16.76 % 

68000 capital Outlay (1,897 ,881.00) 81, 187.61 4.28 % 

99100 Transfers Out (14,082.00) 0.00 0.00 % 

Total Expenditures ( 4,403,556.00) 1,182,254.06 26.85 % 

Total 131 Highway/Public Works 42,465.00 1,173,12S.93 -2,762.57 % 

User: Tracy Blair 
Date/Time: 8/5/2019 5 :26 PM 

Page 12 of 23 

Month-To-Date 
- Estimate· - - - - -

Avg/Mth 

45,741.92 

1,250.00 

45.00 

458.33 

166.67 

1,512.92 

5,000.00 

83.33 

1,250.00 

2,127.92 

250.00 

666.67 

7,317.33 

34,402.75 

188,639.25 

2,621.50 

78,968.17 

370,501.75 

(71,017.58) 

(56,041.67) 

(25,375.00) 

(15,425.00) 

(39,773.50) 

(158,156.75) 

(1,173.50) 

(366,963.00) 

3,S38.75 

Actual 

1,810.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

(7,580.00) 

(3,358.13) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

(9,128.13) 

56,358.58 

597,928.00 

231,650.00 

135,152.84 

79,977.03 

81,187.61 

0.00 

1,182,254.06 

1,173,125.93 

. -· - ·-- . - ·-
0/o of Avg 

-3.96 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

606.40 % 

157.81 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

2.46 % 

79.36 % 

1,066.93 % 

912.91 % 

876.19 % 

201.08 % 

51.33 % 

0.00 % 

322.17 % 



Template Name: LGC Defined Loudon County Finance User: Tracy Blair 
Created by: LGC Summary Financial Statement Date/Time: 8/5/2019 5:26 PM 

July 2019 Page 13 of 23 

141 General Purpose School Year-To-Date Month-To-Date 
- - - --Estimate 

Account Description 
Budget Estimate Actual %of Budget Avg/Mth Actual 0/o of Avg 

Revenues 

40110 Current Property Tax 9,691,448.00 32,985.00 -0.34 % 807,620.67 32,985.00 -4.08 % 

40120 Trustee's Collections - Prior Year 187,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 15,583.33 0.00 0.00 % 

40125 Bankruptcy 20,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 1,666.67 0.00 0.00 % 

40130 Cir Clk/Cik & Master Collections-Pr Yr 190,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 15,833.33 0.00 0.00 % 

40140 Interest And Penalty 44,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 3,666.67 0.00 0.00 % 

40163 Payments In Lieu Of Taxes - Other 324,645.00 0.00 0.00 % 27,053.75 0.00 0.00 % 

40210 Local Option Sales Tax 4,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 333,333.33 0.00 0.00 % 

40275 Mixed Drink Tax 25,000.00 (360.50) 1.44 % 2,083.33 (360.50) 17.30 % 

40320 Bank Excise Tax 20,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 1,666.67 0.00 0.00 % 

40350 Interstate Telecommunications Tax 2,900.00 0.00 0.00 % 241.67 0.00 0.00 % 

41110 Marriage Licenses 1,200.00 0.00 0.00 % 100.00 0.00 0.00 % 

43570 Receipts From Individual Schools 15,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 1,250.00 0.00 0.00 % 

44110 Investment Income 30,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 % 

44160 Retirees' Insurance Payments 62,400.00 (12,880.15) 20.64 % 5,200.00 (12,880.15) 247.70 % 

44170 Miscellaneous Refunds 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 166.67 0.00 0.00 % 

46511 Basic Education Program 21,452,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 1,787,666.67 0.00 0.00 % 

46515 Early Childhood Education 734,715.00 0.00 0.00 % 61,226.25 0.00 0.00 % 

46590 Other State Education Funds 368,092.00 0.00 0.00 % 30,674.33 0.00 0.00 % 

46591 Coordinated School Health 160,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 13,333.33 0.00 0.00 % 

46594 Family Resource Centers 29,611.00 0.00 0.00 % 2,467.58 0.00 0.00 % 

46610 Career Ladder Program 88,600.00 0.00 0.00 % 7,383.33 0.00 0.00 % 

46851 State Revenue Sharing -T.V.A. 1,150,000.00 (1,654.89) 0.14 % 95,833.33 (1,654.89) 1.73 % 

47640 Rotc Reimbursement 66,000.00 (17,229.13) 26.10 % 5,500.00 (17,229.13) 313.26 % 

Total Revenues 38,664,611.00 860.33 0.00% 3,222,050.92 860.33 -0.03% 

Expenditures 

71100 Regular Instruction Program (22,011,737.00) 187,375.20 0.85 % (1,834,311.42) 187,375.20 10.22 % 

71200 Special Education Program (3,050,660.00) 24,480.46 0.80 % (254,221.67) 24,480.46 9.63 % 

71300 Vocational Education Program (1,221,888.00) 65,763.73 5.38 % (101,824.00) 65,763.73 64.59 % 

72110 Attendance (53,257.00) 0.00 0.00 % (4,438.08) 0.00 0.00 % 

72120 Health Services (587,267.00) 10,917.67 1.86 % (48,938.92) 10,917.67 22.31 % 

72130 Other Student Support (1,154,303.00) 31,474.40 2.73 % (96,191.92) 31,474.40 32.72 % 

72210 Regular Instruction Program (1,708,946.00) 50,910.94 2.98 % (142,412.17) 50,910.94 35.75 % 

72220 Special Education Program (730,027.00) 105,552.15 14.46 % (60,835.58) 105,552.15 173.50 % 

72230 Vocational Education Program (159,827.00) 20,862.80 13.05 % (13,318.92) 20,862.80 156.64 % 

72250 Technology (960,858.00) 283,589.09 29.51 % (80,071.50) 283,589.09 354.17 % 

72310 Board Of Education (641,223.00) 237,918.17 37.10 % (53,435.25) 237,918.17 445.25 % 

72320 Office Of The Superintendent (370,624.00) 107,001.58 28.87 % (30,885.33) 107,001.58 346.45 % 



Template Name: LGC Defined 
Created by: LGC 

141 General Purpose School 

Account 

72410 

72510 

72610 

72620 

72710 

73300 

73400 

Total 141 

Description 

Office Of The Principal 

Fiscal Services 

Operation Of Plant 

Maintenance Of Plant 

Transportation 

Community Services 

Early Childhood Education 

Total Expenditures 

General Purpose School 

. . . . -

Loudon County Finance 
Summary Financial Statement 

July 2019 

Year-To-Date 

Budget Estimate Actual %of Budget 

(1,207,823.00) 

(88,076.00) 

(3,265,906.00) 

(250,000.00) 

(1,927,901.00) 

(361,850.00) 

(827,270.00) 

( 40,579,443.00) 

(1,914,832.00) 

189,534.63 

7,084.66 

1,520,978.84 

67,446.48 

13,594.48 

7,923.34 

81,767.80 

3,014,176.42 

3,015,036.75 

15.69 % 

8.04 % 

46.57 % 

26.98 % 

0.71 % 

2.19 % 

9.88 % 

7.43% 

157.46% 

User: 
Date/Time: 

Tracy Blair 
8/5/2019 5 :26 PM 

Page 14 of 23 

Month-To-Date 
· ·-Estimate - ·· · 

Avg/Mth 

(100,651.92) 

(7,339.67) 

(272,158.83) 

(20,833.33) 

(160,658.42) 

(30,154.17) 

(68,939.17) 

(3,381,620.25) 

(159,569.33) 

Actual 

189,534.63 

7,084.66 

1,520,978.84 

67,446.48 

13,594.48 

7,923.34 

81,767.80 

3,014,176.42 

3,015,036.75 

oro of Avg 

188.31 % 

96.53 % 

558.86 % 

323.74 % 

8.46 % 

26.28 % 

118.61 % 

89.13% 

1,889.48 



Template Name: LGC Defined 
Created by: LGC 

142 School Federal Projects 

Account Description 

Revenues 

47131 Vocational Educ - Basic Grants To 

47141 Title 1 Grants To Local Educ Agencies 

47143 Special Education - Grants To States 

47145 Special Education Preschool Grants 

47146 English Language Acquisition Grants 

47147 Safe And Drug-Free Schools-St Grants 

47189 Eisenhower Prof Development State 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 

71100 Regular Instruction Program 

71200 Special Education Program 

71300 Vocational Education Program 

72130 Other Student Support 

72210 Regular Instruction Program 

72220 Special Education Program 

72230 Vocational Education Program 

Total Expenditures 

Total 142 School Federal Projects . 

Loudon County Finance 
Summary Financial Statement 

·- . 

Budget Estimate 

83,068.00 

908,131.00 

1,012,682.00 

17,236.00 

16,411.00 

41,346.00 

139,050.00 

2,217,924.00 

(722,786.00) 

(673,090.00) 

(51,869.00) 

(64,160.00) 

(342,191.00) 

(356,828.00) 

(7,000.00) 

(2,217,924.00) 

0.00 

July 2019 

Year-To-Date 
- · -

Actual 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

o.oo 

4,188.00 

0.00 

0.00 

2,265.00 

14,170.74 

24,568.85 

300.00 

45,492.59 

45,492.59 

Ofo of Budget 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00% 

0.58 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

3.53 % 

4.14 % 

6.89 % 

4.29 % 

2.05% 

100.00% 

User: Tracy Blair 
Date/Time: 8/5/2019 5 :26 PM 

Page 15  of 23 

Month-To-Date 
--Estimate 

Avg/Mth Actual 0/o of Avg 

6,922.33 0.00 0.00 % 

75,677.58 0.00 0.00 % 

84,390.17 0.00 0.00 % 
1,436.33 0.00 0.00 % 

1,367.58 0 .00 0.00 % 

3,445.50 0.00 0.00 % 
1 1,587.50 0.00 0.00 % 

184,827.00 0.00 0.00% 

(60,232.17) 4,188.00 6.95 % 
(56,090.83) 0.00 0.00 % 

(4,322.42) 0.00 0.00 % 

(5,346.67) 2,265.00 42.36 % 
(28,515.92) 14,170.74 49.69 % 

(29,735.67) 24,568.85 82.62 % 

(583.33) 300.00 51.43 % 

(184,827.00) 45,492.59 24.61% 
.-

o.oo 45,492.59 0.00% 



Template Name: LGC Defined Loudon County Finance User: Tracy Blair 

Created by: LGC Summary Financial Statement Date/Time: 8/5/2019 5 :26 PM 
July 2019 Page 16 of 23 

143 Central Cafeteria Year-To-Date Month-To-Date 
·- Estimate 

Account Description 
Budget Estimate Actual %of Budget Avg/Mth Actual 0/o of Avg 

Revenues 

43521 Lunch Payments - Children 430,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 35,833.33 0.00 0.00 % 

43522 Lunch Payments - Adults 35,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 2,916.67 0.00 0.00 % 

43525 A La Carte Sales 10,500.00 0.00 0.00 % 875.00 0.00 0.00 % 

43570 Receipts From Individual Schools 100.00 0.00 0.00 % 8.33 0.00 0.00 % 

44110 Investment Income 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 83.33 0.00 0.00 % 

46520 School Food Service 25,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 2,083.33 0.00 0.00 % 

46980 Other State Grants 12,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 

47111  USDA School Lunch Program 1,174,500.00 0.00 0.00 % 97,875.00 0.00 0.00 % 

47113 Breakfast 356,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 29,666.67 0.00 0.00 % 

47114 USDA - Other 186,000.00 (10.50) 0.01 % 15,500.00 (10.50) 0.07 % 

47990 Other Direct Federal Revenue 150,000.00 (58,221.00) 38.81 % 12,500.00 (58,221.00) 465.77 % 

Total Revenues 2,380,100.00 (58,231.50) 2.45% 198,341.67 (58,231.50) 29.36% 

Expenditures 

73100 Food Service (2,380,100.00) 151,661.88 6.37 % (198,341.67) 151,661.88 76.46 % 

Total Expenditures (2,380,100.00) 151,661.88 6.37% (198,341.67) 151,661.88 76.46% 

Total 143 Central Cafeteria 0.00 93,430.38 100.00% 0.00 93,430.38 0.00% 



Template Name: LGC Defined 
Created by: LGC 

151 General Debt Service 

Account Description 

Revenues 

40110 Current Property Tax 

40120 Trustee's Collections - Prior Year 

40125 Bankruptcy 

40130 Cir Clk/Cik & Master Collections-Pr Yr 

40140 Interest And Penalty 

40163 Payments In Lieu Of Taxes - other 

40320 Bank Excise Tax 

44110 Investment Income 

44514 Revenue From Joint Ventures (Govt 

48140 Contracted Services 

49800 Transfers In 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 

82110 General Government 

82210 General Government 

82310 General Government 

Total Expenditures 

Total 151 General Debt Service 

loudon County Finance 
Summary Financial Statement 

Budget Estimate 

1,653,768.00 

20,000.00 

1,000.00 

15,000.00 

6,000.00 

84,810.00 

1,000.00 

3,000.00 

27,000.00 

234,420.00 

125,000.00 

2,170,998.00 

(882,000.00) 

(563,240.00) 

(271,920.00) 

(1,717,160.00) 

453,838.00 

July 2019 

Year-To-Date 

Actual 

3,751.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

3,751.00 

0.00 

2,505.60 

16,956.00 

19,461.60 

23,212.60 

- - -· · -

%of Budget 

-0.23 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

-0.17% 

0.00 % 

0.44 % 

6.24 % 

1.13% 

-5.11% 

User: Tracy Blair 
Date/Time: 8/5/2019 5 :26 PM 

Page 17 of 23 

Month-To-Date 
·· Estimate 

Avg/Mth Actual 0/o of Avg 

137,814.00 3,751.00 -2.72 % 

1,666.67 0.00 0.00 % 

83.33 0.00 0.00 % 
1,250.00 0.00 0.00 % 

500.00 0.00 0.00 % 

7,067.50 0.00 0.00 % 

83.33 0.00 0.00 % 

250.00 0.00 0.00 % 

2,250.00 0.00 0.00 % 
19,535.00 0.00 0.00 % 

10,416.67 0.00 0.00 % 

180,916.50 3,751.00 -2.07% 

(73,500.00) 0 .00 0.00 % 

(46,936.67) 2,505.60 5.34 % 

(22,660.00) 16,956.00 74.83 % 

(143,096.67) 19,461.60 13.60% 

37,819.83 23,212.60 -61.38% 



Template Name: LGC Defined 
Created by: LGC 

156 Education Debt Service 

Account Description 

Revenues 

40110 Current Property Tax 

40120 Trustee's Collections - Prior Year 

40125 Bankruptcy 

40130 Cir Clk/Cik & Master Collections-Pr Yr 

40140 Interest And Penalty 

40163 Payments In Lieu Of Taxes - Other 

40285 Adequate Facilities/Development Tax 

40320 Bank Excise Tax 

44110 Investment Income 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 

82130 Education 

82230 Education 

82330 Education 

Total Expenditures 

Total 156 Education Debt Service 

loudon County Finance 
Summary Financial Statement 

Budget Estimate 

3,318,688.00 

60,000.00 

3,000.00 

46,000.00 

18,000.00 

162,060.00 

600,000.00 

5,170.00 

60,000.00 

4,272,918.00 

(3,615,000.00) 

(1,478,975.00) 

(130,000.00) 

(5,223,975.00) 

(951,057.00) 

July 2019 

Year-To-Date 
- - . . . 

Actual 

8,471.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

8,471.00 

0.00 

0.00 

706.25 

706.25 

9,177.25 

%of Budget 

-0.26 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

-0.20% 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.54 % 

0.01 Ofo 

0.96 Ofo 

User: Tracy Blair 
Date/Time: 8/5/2019 5 :26 PM 

Page 18 of 23 

Month-To-Date 
Estimate · 
Avg/Mth Actual Ofo of Avg 

276,557.33 8,471.00 -3.06 % 

5,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 

250.00 0.00 0.00 % 
3,833.33 0.00 0.00 % 

1,500.00 0.00 0.00 % 

13,505.00 0.00 0.00 % 

50,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 

430.83 0.00 0.00 % 

5,000.00 0.00 0.00 % 

356,076.50 8,471.00 -2.38% 

(301,250.00) 0.00 0.00 % 

(123,247.92) 0.00 0.00 % 
(10,833.33) 706.25 6.52 % 

(435,331.25) 706.25 0.16 Ofo 

(79,254.75) 9,177.25 11.58 Ofo 



Template Name: LGC Defined Loudon County Finance User: Tracy Blair 
Created by: LGC Summary Financial Statement Date/Time: 8/5/2019 5 :26 PM 

July 2019 Page 19 of 23 

171 General Capital Projects Year-To-Date Month-To-Date 

Budget Estimate 
Estimate 

Account Description Actual Dfo of Budget Avg/Mth Actual Dfo of Avg 

Revenues 

40110 Current Property Tax 164,141.00 545.00 -0.33 % 13,678.42 545.00 -3.98 % 

40120 Trustee's Collections - Prior Year 2,200.00 0.00 0.00 % 183.33 0.00 0.00 % 

40125 Bankruptcy 100.00 0.00 0.00 % 8.33 0.00 0.00 % 

40130 Cir Clk/Cik & Master Collections-Pr Yr 4,600.00 0.00 0.00 % 383.33 0.00 0.00 % 

40140 Interest And Penalty 500.00 0.00 0.00 % 41.67 0.00 0.00 % 

40163 Payments In Lieu Of Taxes - Other 5,463.00 0.00 0.00 % 455.25 0.00 0.00 % 

40210 Local Option Sales Tax 178,460.00 0.00 0.00 % 14,871.67 0.00 0.00 % 

40320 Bank Excise Tax 221.00 0.00 0.00 % 18.42 0.00 0.00 % 

44570 Contributions & Gifts 2,500.00 (107.50) 4.30 % 208.33 (107.50) 51.60 % 

49800 Transfers In 14,081.00 0.00 0.00 % 1,173.42 0.00 0.00 % 

Total Revenues 372,266.00 437.50 -0.12 Dfo 31,022.17 437.50 -1.41 Dfo 
Expenditures 

58900 Miscellaneous (4,000.00) 0.00 0.00 % (333.33) 0.00 0.00 % 

91110 General Administration Projects (200,000.00) 0.00 0.00 % (16,666.67) 0.00 0.00 % 

91120 Administration Of Justice Projects (61,261.00) 97,765.17 159.59 % (5,105.08) 97,765.17 . 1,915.06 % 

91130 Public Safety Projects (168,000.00) 231,980.00 138.08 % (14,000.00) 231,980.00 1,657.00 % 

91200 Highway & Street Capital Projects (89,820.00) 0.00 0.00 % (7,485.00) 0.00 0 .00 % 

"99100 Transfers Out (55,546.00) 0.00 0.00 % (4,628.83) 0.00 0.00 % 

Total Expenditures (578,627.00) 329,745.17 56.99 Dfo ( 48,218.92) 329,745.17 683.85 Dfo 

Total 171 General capital Projects (206,361.00) 330,182.67 160.00 Dfo (17,196.75) 330,182.67 1,920.03 



Template Name: LGC Defined 
Created by: LGC 

176 Highway Capital Projects 

Account Description 

Revenues 

40110 Current Property Tax 

40120 Trustee's Collections - Prior Year 

40125 Trustee's Collections - Bankruptcy 

40130 Cir Clk/Cik & Master Collections-Pr Yr 
40140 Interest And Penalty 

40163 Payments In Lieu Of Taxes - Other 

40320 Bank Excise Tax 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 

91200 Highway & Street Capital Projects 

Total Expenditures 

Total 176 Highway Capital Projects 

Loudon County Finance 
Summary Financial Statement 

Budget Estimate 

282,394.00 

7,500.00 

300.00 

3,500.00 

1,000.00 

9,390.00 

88.00 

304,172.00 

(361,000.00) 

(361,000.00) 

(56,828.00) 

July 2019 

Year-To-Date 
·- - · · · ·  - - -

Actual 

936.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

936.00 

0.00 

0.00 

936.00 

%of Budget 

-0.33 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

0.00 % 

-0.31% 

0.00 % 

0.00% 

1.65% 

User: Tracy Blair 
Date/Time: 8/5/2019 5:26 PM 

Page 20 of 23 

Month-To-Date 
·· Estimate 
Avg/Mth Actual % of Avg 

23,532.83 936.00 -3.98 % 

625.00 0.00 0.00 % 

25.00 0.00 0.00 % 
291.67 0.00 0.00 % 

83.33 0.00 0.00 % 

782.50 0.00 0.00 % 

7.33 0.00 0.00 % 

25,347.67 936.00 -3.69% 

(30,083.33) 0.00 0.00 % 

(30,083.33) 0.00 0.00% 

(4,735.67) 936.00 19.76% 



EXH I B IT 0805 2019-F 

A c 

Loudon County 

Cou nty General Fund 1 0 1  
Fiscal Year Ending J u ne 3 0 ,  2020 

D E F I G I H 

A ........ .-nun•l t> .. ,. �oscd 
1 ! I General Fund 1 0 1  I I 2 • N b I I 8/26/20 1 9 12: 12  2019-2020 2019-2020 I "1'1" � --- I • · �  account 1 um cr 11 r---3 I 1 Org Bgt Amds Amdcd B�t I Amds 

I I I Proposed I 
[ Amdcd Budget 

_ 1 1  I 
1 1 s3 54000[-lr�i,\i�-sar�iy- l 

j _____ l i I 
_U _I I --;------)=--4:-cl-:-I O !_!Sheriffs Department I 

1 0  I [County Official/Administrative Officer (Sheriff) I 93,742 93,742 I 93,742 
t---;--------ci-::0-:-3_t-,Ji\ssistants (ChiefDeputies) j 1 27,069 1 27,069 �--- 1 27,069 

I 06 Deputies - 4 New J;:mployees - 3 Patrol, I Court 1 74,224 1 74,224 1 74,224 
...:...:..:+---��----_-c-:1:..::0�6 J Dcpu t ics (XTRA = $4 1 ,200) ______ _ I 1 ,223,897 1 ! 1 ,223,897 1 (45,032)_ 1 , 1 78,865 

�L] Im
-
·cstigator(s) I 1 55,0 1 7 1 �55,0_12__L

. 

____ ____ __ 1 55,0 1 7  
109RCaptain(s) I 56,544 I 56,544 I 56,544 
1 1 0 Lieulenanl(s) 1 5 8,0 1 3  1 5 8,0 1 3 ! 1 58,0 1 3  

....:...:.C=j------liS -[S�-;g;;-anl(s)- __ 103,345 , 1 03 ,345 L_ -51,688 I 1 55,033 
�-'I--------'-12=0I I Compuler Programmer (XTRA = $3,399) I 47,023 I 47,023 i I 47,023 

1 40nSalary Supfllement (lnservice reimb by State) I 29,400 29,400 I ----�--29,400 
-----1 6-l )l Sccretary(ies) \ 35 , 1 76 35, 1 76 :----- 35, 176 

-------- -�[clcric;J r�rsonnel 1 04,065 I 1 04,065 �=--===--104:065 
_____ ___:1_:_66::..1 [Custodial Personnel 29,236 1 I 29,236 � 29,236 

-'-'--'-'i--------=-16:...:_9 j_J Part-lime Personnel (Deputies) I 50,000 50,000 ! I -50,000 
1 70 !  School Resource Officer - 2 New Employees 87, 1 1 2  87, 1 1 2  87, 1 1 2  -----17Q-��lSchool Resource Officer (XTRA = 5 1 5�450) I 409,222 ! I 409,222 ! _ I 409,222 
1 87 _ _ [_Overtime Pa� _ 1 50,000 l [ 1 50,000 f----- ---- i--_!_50,000 

1 87-STBLTL!Overtime (GHSO Grant; Seatbclt U��;_e) i [ 0 1 ! 0 I 
-'=-'i-----:-1 8:-:7::-_:0:sT='B=-'L"'=T='-==F 1 5I I overtime (GHSO Grant; Seatbelt Usage-FY20 1 5 )  I I I 0 i I 0 

1 87-GHSOG !_ Overtime Pay(GHSQ_Qr�fl!)_ _ ___ � 1 ] g __ l _ _ ____ l 0 
-=='-=-1----.:..::..:-==-=20'-=-1 j_ Social Security 1 88,052 I I �,052 1--- __ _ _  '!_1_2 \ 1 88,464 

20 1 -STBL Tl Social S�c (GHSO Grant; Seat belt Usage) _ ! 0 I 0 
201 -STBLT-F 1 5 i  [ Social Sec (GHSO Grant; Seatbelt Usage-FY 20 1 5) I I 0 I 0 

-==-';---==--=-2=-0 1 -GHSOCXj Social Security (GHSO Grant) _ __ _ _j I 
---,-----Oj--

=---�----0 
1 21 0  204 ! i �tale Retirement______ i __ 1 1 ,305 1 1 ,30�j__ _ 1 1 ,305 1 
1 2 1 1  2QI[lS_tfl_l."._�l•rement - lmprovecJ_�nefit 55/25 I 287,372 287,372 I 800 288, 1 72 
1 2 1 2  204-STBLTj_fRcl,rcment (GHSO Grant, Seatbelt Usage) i I 0 i 0 

' 1 2 1 3  --204-SmLT-FiS [��l(GI-ISO Grant, Seatbclt Usag_::-FY 20_!2LI ____ _ _I o_[ __ _ _ __ __j 0 
1 2 1 4  204-GIISOG \_j Stale Retirement (GI ISO Grant) ! I 0 I � 0 
1 2 1 5  206 Life Insurance - 6 New Employees - Family Cover I ,076 1 ,076 I ,076 

-----w6n LJ.!::_lnsuranc_c____________ 9,040 I ! _9,040 _J I 9,040 1 
-=-=-'-'-!-----=2:..:0-=6-=-RE-= T-LlF [J Life 1nsurance-Rctirccs I I ,309 I I I ,309 I I I ,309 

--
-----:=2:,-:0,:.7 ! Medical insurance - 6 New Employees Family Cover 98,920 98,920 98,920 

-
---

=2c:.07.:...q!':i����urance I 649,5 1 3  I I 649,5 1 3  I ! 649,5 1 3  
__ ___:2::..:0:..:.7

-
=-S:..:.Rl=--!.:!:: H Li Medical lnsurance - Sr. Health I 8,562 I I 8,562 I I 8,562 

208f Dental lnsuranc� - 6 New Emplovee� Family Cov 4,8 1 1  - 4,8 l l  4 8! 1 
-'-='-=-1----

---
=2=-=0-=-8+-i .;.:I D::..:c=�tal lns�ranc� 

- . . 
33,358 I - • - I 33,358 I I J:i:3s8 

208-RET-DE!:'!_j_ Dent�surancc-Retirees _ ---�- I 1 ,644 _ 1  ____ 1 1 ,644 
_ 2 1 0 1  Unem�tlllE_nt C�pensation _____ I l ____ __p_[_____ 0 1 ----

2 1 2 1  � �!l1!'��cr Medicare 43,980 ! L __ 43,980 - l - - · -- - -2�_l _ ___ 44,076 
2 1 2-STBLTI I Medicare (GHSO Grant; Seatbelt Usage) _ I I 0 � 0 

-'-==-=J----:::2-,-1 2=---'0s=T=-B=-LT=-=:F I 5L [!vledicare (GHSO Grant; Seatbelt Usag_c - FY20 1 5) I l I - . ol _ __  0 

Budget Committee Ju/ 1 5, 2019 

County Commission Aug 5, 2019 

2 1 2-GHSOG I I Employer Medicare (GHSO Grant) I I 0 j 0 

Page 37 



Loudon County 

Cou nty General Fund 1 0 1  

Fiscal Year Ending J u n e  3 0 ,  2020 

A w--- -- c I D I E I F I G H � j I General Fund 1 0 1  J_ I j l r----· S/26/20 t 9  t 2 : t 2  �19-2020 -1 2019-2020 I Approved Proposed Proposed Account Number -1 1 1 I · Org B�:t Amds Amded B�:t Amds Amdcd Budget 
---------::=JI ._L I ___ I__ _j __ __ _ 

307[  _ _  Communication ! 20,000 j I 20,0_QQ__I �-- 20,000 307-WIRE I_ Communication I I � . __ . 

____ _c3:.:2:::0.1 Dues and MembcrshiJ'S I 2,750 2,750 
..:..=-:"'l _______ _:_3=30T l ope rati_Tl_& Lease Pay�ents I 3,000 L____ 3 ,000 �----- --- 3,0QQ 
-=:..:;------=3�0-SI·IERF\JQ��g-Lease Payments (From Restricted Funds) I 3,000 j I 3,000 . 3,000 

332-AWARE_ [_ L�_gal Notices (l'rom Commilled Funds) __ I _ _ _ 1 0 _ _ ____ _! 0 
· ----- 334 [  Maintenance Agreements L_ 1 0,000 I 1 0,000 1·--__!_Q.,OOO 

1 236 ____ 334-RADIO [ [ Maintenance Agreements - Radios __ __! 1 4 ,000 1 4,000 ______ 1 4,000 
1 237 }�� I _ ! J:;gu_ie_<:I�nt Ma int & Repair _ I 5,000 I 5,000 I 5,000 

�� ! Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles I _ 1 75,000 i 1 75,000 L___1__2,00.2_ 
-=:..:;-----3-3 8- l'Y 1 8 [  I Maintenance and Repair Services - Vehicles I ! I 0 

r - . . 
0 

..:.1=.24:..:0�-----=-=-=-"-340 1 . Med & Den - 6 New Employc�s l ,SOO 1,500 '1 ,500 
1241 _______ 3�Q[i.�.£'!i:'.."l and Dental Se�ices- 5,000 ! 5,000 I 5,000 
1 242 348 [ �al Charges 6,500 [ 6,500 I 6,500 

---::--:-::--:-=-:C-3'-:4'::0-91J Pri�t�g,_§tationery, and Forms ·---=3�l<JIJ-_ 

-! ---3,500 -l== 3 200 
=.:+ ___ ..::3...:.4..:..9-..::L::..l'.�VR I_I Printing, Stationery, and l'onns I I ,000 I ! ! I 1 245 35 3 . [Tow-in Services I 6,500 I I 6,500 ! 6,500 
1 246 ----=-� 32?_[

J
II..!:�vel - j� _ _ l 2,000 _ __ ___ __ I 1 2,000 ! _1 2,000 

1 247 355-FY I 8 1  Travel jl I I I 
1 248 --�-=-u.svR'j_ITravei 

--
__ ___ I L _[ 71�����===-

1 249 -· ·--------�2.)_[0ther Contraeted s�,.,ices l 23 ,000 [ 
! 

23,000 I I 23,000 
1 250 4 1 2 1  [ D iese l Fuel I 500 I I 500 j , 500 
1 251 -----·-=--4 1 3\lDrLJ_g_�d Medical Su!J.p l ies ,----- -----� 0 �-----�---- 0 
1252 ________ ..i.I..'!LL'2':'.!J.!.icatj_fl_gJl.!:!J.Pi ies 1 ,800 ! F j _______ j __ 

422 [ I Food Suppl ies . 2,000 I 2,000 1 I 2,000 --i------ ·42-s []Gasoline I 200,000 I 200,000 I I 200,000 
4:l_!_\ J,aw Enf Supplies - 6 New Er!]ployees I ,200 I .�_00 1 ,200 ------435 I]Ofl1ce Supplies I 1 0,000 ! J 1 0,000 I _ j __ �QQ_ 
450 Jj T ires I 25,000 i I 25,000 I � 25,000 

-----4-,.-51 L· !Jnifonns - 6 _l�l�w E_mployees _ •. _5,700 _ 5,700 -
5.,?QO 

45 I r i unifonns I 37,500 ! I 37,500 I I 37,500 --'--i--------499fiother Supplies and Materials [ I O,oog_j I 1 0.000 -� I 1 0,000 
--+---4-"9:':9-::-A-:W--="cAREj_iOther S�pplies and Materials (From Commined Fundi 3,000 I I 3 ,000 ___ 

l 3,000 
__ 4-'-9-'-9-LFSVRj \Other Supplies and Materials (From Commilled Fundi 3,000 I 3 ,000 . l 3,000 

1 263 ____ 508 UPremiums on CoT._orale Surely Bonds J 250 I 250 \ ___ __ 1. 250 
1 264 . . 5 1 3 1  !Worker's Comp Insurance I 47,728 I 47,728 l -r 47,728 
1 265 - - -------s24j_.!_r12�dsillffDevelopment -F 30,000 I 30.,000 I [ 30,000 
1266 524 LFSVRI l in Service/Staff Dev-Project Lifesaver I 0 I I 0 
1 267 --------708f: Comf!)U,ni.�ll.tion- s�jp - � New (rr�plby_ees _ · 14,00_0 . � · _  c.. 
1268 ______ ___ 1Q.�_I] Communicalion Equipment j ! 6.000 I 
1 269 - . _____ 2.!&f�Law Enf Equipment 6 New E:rr!P!oyc�s 25,560 
1 270 7 1 6  0 Law Enforcement Equipment j 20,000 
1 271 --- 7 1 6-A WARE[ i'Law Enforccm_ent Egll_j£ment (From Com milled Fund, 4,29..Q. 
1272 _ _ _ _ _  7_1_6 GHSOGI_ La:v Enforcement Equip (GHSOG) 

., _ __ _ 

44,000 
1 6,000 
i5,_56o 
20,000 

1273 __ 7 1 6  GHSOG ��-�� Law Enforcement Equ ip (GHSOG) . 
1 274 7 1 8 1 Vehicles - New Emp!;yees 1 60.000 1 60,000 1 60.000 

B udget Committee Ju/ 1 5, 2019 

County Commission Aug 5, 2019 Page 38 



Lo udon County 

C o unty General Fund 1 01 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020 

A I� c D I E F I G j H 
1 ' I  G eneral Fund 1 0 1  I I I I 
2 

-l- -
8/26/2019 12:12 2 0 1 9-2020 J 201 9-2020 Approved \ Proposed J Proposed --=- Account N umber t--1 3 1 Org B�:t I Amds Amded Bgt Amds I Amded Budget 

� l ' I L L__ ____ l 
1275 7 1 9 j iOfficc Equipment 2,000 ! I 2,000 I I 2,000 
1 276 7 1 9-SHERF I \Office E�mcnl (From Rcslrictcd l'unds) I 0,000 I I 1 0,000 I 1 0,000 
1 277 l i I I I I � ---------j j Total Shcrifrs Department l 5,323,715 [ 0 _____ 5,323,7 1 5  -�- 7,964 _ ---=5"',3c=3�1 ,--=6-=-79::- l 
1279 I I I t � I __ __ _ � l l  i ! ------ ___ ____ -,1_ -----� ri -------� -f-- r I r;m------n -

1 i ----1 �----1------
r;zs.;- i -· 1 1 · · r------

� ---d l I I I I 
12e6 I I I I I I 

B udget Committee Ju/ 1 5, 2019 

County Commission Aug 5, 2019 Page 39 



Loudon County 

County General Fund 1 01 
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020 

A c F I G I H 
1 \ I General Fund 1 0 1  I I I [_ i 

rr 812612019  1 2 : 1 2  I 201 9-2020 2019-2020 l Approved l -Pr���-;;]1�� Account Number . 1 -�-1 I Org llgt I Am<ls I Am <led llgt Amds I Amdcd Budget 

' I  ' I I I I ---

�
-

---- i i I ____ _ __ _ j--- 1 
____ ___ 542 1 0  I_ Jail Department I I ! I .!_ ____ _ 

I 09 Captain(s) I 56,545 I 56,545 [ I 56,545 -- -
92J ,§24 _;_ : . 9� 1 ,624 (38,40 1 )  88i.n.3. [_ 994,647 I I 994,647 ,_____ _ ! 994,647 F=-==-----.>.:..:.:=-=---=-""-'-'-'------L 1 20,427 I ! 1 20,427 . ! 1 20,427 

::.:.::.:.::.:._ __________ 1 67,596 ! +--.§2,596 

�-
---

-� 
67,596 

----- ---·--�-- :.::_:_=_::.:.:_=_ · ---- ------1 1 02,500 I .1._ l 02,SO� 1::-::::=---=--=l--� 
1 323 1 87-CRSE�� - Overtime Wages _! 3,500 I I 3 ,502._ _ j 3,500 
1 324 20 1 ��Socm1 Secunl:)_' _ __ ______ _ ___ I 1 32,86 1 I 1 32,86 1 (2,3 8_!2J 1 30,480 
1325 ___ 20 1_:_<::RSEC_ I _ �"-'�cunty __ _ ___ ___ _______ c= 7,683 I I 7,683 ______ j 7,683 
1 326 -----�]_I State Retirement I 143,789 [ __ __I_i3,789 _ ____ __ (_2,800l! ! 40,989 
-'=C-j----=2.o..04-CRSEC I [ State Retirement I 8,3 1 6  I 8 ,3 1 6  I 8,3 1 6  

---:i.Q6f Lite lns!Jrance - i4' New f:mploxees - Family 1JM ... '- 4,304 ( 1 79) 4,1�� 

1 33o ---2o6:cR:5Ec- n u r0;s���� I ---357 i-. ----357· ----�- 357 
1329 _ 206) J Life Insurance 4,484 I i 4,484 � i 4,484 

206-RET-LIF I -J Life Insurance-Retirees �---·"'"346 1-. -----346- -------�--� __1Qj[ M�c:!_i�al lnsurance - 24 t:Jo::w Emr.Ioyees - Fam.ily 395,§78 - -- 3_9�,�7� ( 1 (),4§7) . .J79, 1 9 1  
.:..:..:=l------ 207 1 r Medical Insurance I 289,594 \ 289,594 I \ 289,594 
..:..:..:c.+ __ __:2:.:0c:.7...::-CRSEC-[ ] Medical lnsurance _ _  [ 1 7,3SO j ____ !_7_,��Q_! ____ _ _ L_ __ I_7,350 
f-'-'-"--'1---'2:.:0c:.7.c:-RE-=-T'---'-'MEDij �0.i_cal 1nsurancc - Retirees _I ___ 1 4, 1 04 j 1 4, 1 04 ] _ _ _ __ ! 1 4 , 1 04 

207-SRHTI·d I Medical lnsurancd - Sr. Health I 3,895 [ 3,895 I 1 3,895 
---·--·-·=· 208[ Dental Insurance - 24 N�w E!f1ployecs - Family ! 9)4.5 1 9,245 (802) 1 8,44J � 

208 ! ! Dental Insurance I 1 5,397 1 ! 1 5 ,397 I ! 1 5,397 
-

-
-268-CRSEC [ j Dcntal 1nsurance . I  1 ,075 --�----1 :075 \ ==----=�---1,075 

208-RET! I Dental Insurance - Retirees I 333 I I 333 I 1 333 
1 341  _---------zi2l!Employ.;-; Medicare _ _ ___ [_ 3 1 ,072 I I 3 1 ,072 I_· _ __ (557)\ ___ 30,5 1 5  
1 342 2 1 2-CRSEC ! ! Employer Medicare ! 1 ,797 I 1 ,797 1 i 1 ,797 
1 343 ------33QQQP_C!'��f1.& Lease r�;;t;· (QJ�er) -=-==-�� --�ol 2,500 1'-----------� 2,500 

33 1 !  ! Legal Services . I 3,000 i 3,000 , I 3,000 
1 345 ___ ___ 33i;-·\Mamtcna[]_�e Agr�emen� --==..::::=.:::.=-� ___ 1 0,000 L ____ ---IO,OOOi--------�---iO,ooo 
1 346 � Q Mamtcnance and Repair Servtces- Equtpm ! 5,000 \ 5,000 [ I 5,000 

..c::..-+------�Q [ _ lv!_c_d & [)e_!l Services - 24 New _Employees . 6,000 §,00.0 (250) 5,750 
1 348 ------------

--�O IJ Medical and Denial Services I 280,000 I I 280.000 i___ I 280,000 
1 349 340-FY 1 8 [ [ Medical and Dental Services ! ! 0 ! � 0 
1 350 348 1 Post;IC!mrges ----- - - ----· T 200 ! �200 �----- - -� 200 
1 351 ----

_
349f Printing, Sta�ry&fo"n:;;�--------1 500 i - _ 500 ! _______ 11 500 

1 352 ______ 355 [ Travel__ .. I 1 ,000 ! I ,QQQj____ _  _ 1 ,000 
1353 ___ 3 55-EXTRAl Travel - Extradition �--- 3,000 j ____l,Q_QQ_ !  _ _ _ _ _  [ 3,000 
1 354 399 1  I Other Contracted Services I 5,000 ! 5,000 r- I 5,000 

Budget Committee Ju/ 15, 201 9  

County Commission A ug 5, 2019 Page 41 



Loudon Cou nty 

County General Fund 1 01 
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020 

A IBl c I D , --E L---=-L- --, G I H 

� U General Fund 1 0 1  I I I I 1 I I 8/26120 19 12: 12  I 2019-2020 I 2019-2020 Approved j Proposed I Proposed 
Account Number -1 1 · 

I I I Org B�t I Amds Amded Bgt Amds Amded Budget 
----·---- I I I I 

1355 _ '!..!.Ql_ICustodial Suee!�----·-
·
------� 20,000 I 20,000 [ _, __ , _ __ , I 20,000 

1356 ___ _ _ _ __ 4 1_l! !Drugs and Medical Sueelies ( Inmates) I 200,000 I 200,00QT I 200,000 
1357 �(! Duplicating�el�-·--

1 500 I 500 I _ _  .. I 500 
1358 - �!_I Food Pr��ration SueJ>Iics l 10,000 I 1 0,000 I I 1 0,000 
1359 . 422 i i food Suppl ies (Inmates) I 250,000 I I 250,000 I I 250,000 
1360 - -- 43lrLaw Entqrcefl).e�t �l!PP..Iies - 24 New Employee� · �.joq. 2,400 ( 100) �.3_00 
1361 ==.:_::_ - -43spomcc Supplies l 8,000 I I s.ooo I . I _ 8;ooo_ 
1362 451 ! Unifonns - 24 New Employees 22,800 22,800 (950) 2 1 ,850 
1363 ·-- -- 45 t iiunir�rms - . i 23 .ooo I I 23 .ooo I . I iJ.ooo 
1364 -· ------4-6S! !chemicals I I 0 i 0 
1365 ___ -___ -- 4.99 !Joth�r Su�plics& Materials ( Inmate Su�plics) I 50,000 I 50,000H------� 50,000 
1366 _______ �Q[_.! Workers' Come lnsurancc 1 ____ 27,0 16 i I 27,0 1 6  I 27,0 1 6  
1367 524 1 ! In-Scrvicc/StaiTDcvclopmcnt ! 3 ,000 I r 3 ,000 I I 3,000 
1368 -- - -----?osr;communication Eq!Jipm�nt - 24 New Employ�cs 1 3 ,200 · - ! 3,2QO (5�0) 1 2,6SO 

' 1369 - --- -----_ 708 j]communication E�pmc_nt __ _ ____ _ __ \ 3,000 \ I 3,000 I J 3 ,000 
1370 _ __l!.Ql _! Food Service Equipment j 4,000 \ j 4,000 i I 4,000 

I 1 371 7 1 1 lJ Furni turc and Fixtures i 5,000 I I 5,000 i I 5,000 
1 372 - - ·- --------:n6! Law EnfEquipment - 24 New Employees I B,OOO 1 8,000 (750) 1 7,250 
1373 · -- --- 719 r lomc� Equipmc;;;- ·-

_ . .  _ 

! - -6 i I ·- · - o I I -
o 

1374 �=�----·-- - n--- - · ---- --· .L __
___ ! _ _______ _Q_� ____ _� ___ __Q_ ______ UTotal .Jail Depa rtment _______ , __ _[ 4,334,635 I 0 I 4,334,635 i (64,207tl 4,270,428 

1 376 I I i I I 

Budget Committee Ju/ 1 5, 2019 

County Commission Aug 5, 2019 Page 42 



A 

Loudon Cou nty 

C o u nty General Fund 1 01 

Fiscal Year Ending J u ne 30, 2020 

lEi c--� --- -� --o--T E I F I G I H 

I I 8/26/20 1 9  1 2 : 1 2  Approved �- -·Proposed- Proposed � L1 G eneral  Fund 1 0 1  I \ Account Number 'l r· ·---
1 Amded Bgt 1 Amds I Amded Budget 

� ' _!____ I -�L _ ___ _ ___ ! ______ 1 1825 U I t-1 ---�rl ____ 1 1826 Est i m a ted Total FB _per YE Report J u n e  30, 2 0 1 8 - U n a u dited i 4,78 1 , 1 70 �� I 
I 11 827 Less Restricted, Commi tted & Assigned Items l 0 I 

1828 Estimated Avai lable  Fund Ba i�J;;iYI.ZOi8_____ ___
___ 4,78 1 , 1 7 0  4,78 1 , 1 70 [ ----� 

1829 --n i I I 
4,78 1 , 1 70 

�:�� -- -=1_=1- I I +---- : I 

� ---------- ! I ·· - -- - - - I I 1 I 
1 833 ! I : ! � !otal Reve� _ _\_E - --- 1 8 ,435,889 �-� __ 1_8,435 ,889 _! ---o--1!--1-8-,4-3_5_,8_8_9 
1 835 Tra nsfers l n  I 0 o l  o !  o l  0 

-
--� -- --- , 

·---------, 1 836 lJ ____ I !_ . 1 �Total Rev��n d  Tra
,
nsfers I n  --------��---1 1 8,435,889 1 0 I 1 8,435,889 ! . 0 ! 1 8,435,889 

1 838 I I I i I 
1 839 --�-� , I -�----� r;-;;o------�-- - -� ��- - ! I i I �Total Available Fun_<!��� l 23,217,059 I 0 I 23,2 1 7,0�_2_+-�=- � 0 [23,2'17;059-
1 842 : : i I I I � Expenditure Budget  il-----=-=-==----=--===-=------! 9,658,350 1 0 9,658,35oT�-� ts6,2.U)j 9,602, 1 0 7 1 � Transfers Ou t __ ---�-: _ _]________ _ i 1 2,270,0 1 0  I 0 1 2,Z70,0 1 0  I ____Q__j 1 2,270,0 1 0  

� i ! ! I I ____ L� 
1 846 Total Expendi tu res a nd Transfer Out [ 2 1 ,928,360 0 2 1 ,928,360 I (56,243) I 2 1 ,872 , 1 1 7  �----L:FI ! I II ___ L ... _ _ L 
1 848 Ending Fund Bala nce J 1,288,699 0 1 ,288,�99 �243 I 1 ,344,942 I �::� b- ______ l ) I 111 __ __ l 

11 851 I I ! l I 

Budget Committee Ju/ 15, 20 19 

County Commission Aug 5, 2019 Page 60 



LOUDON COUNTY CLERK 

CARRIE MCKELVEY COUNTY CLERK 

1 0 1  MULBERRY ST S TE 2 0 0 

LOUDON TN 3 7 7 7 4  

Telephone 

Fax 

8 6 5 - 4 5 8 - 3 3 1 4  

8 6 5 - 4 5 8 - 9 8 9 1  

Notaries to be elected Augu s t  0 5 , 2 0 1 9  

K E LS EY ADAMS 

STE P HAN I E  DAWN CARTER 

H EATH ER DORAN 

LAU RA GORDON 

WES LEY VER N O N  H E N D E RSON 

CYNTHIA A LEN N EX 

PAU L HOWARD ROG ERS 

ANITA J STALLI N GS 

ANNA WI LLIAMS 

EXHIBIT 08052019-G 



Loudon County Board of Educa tion 

C o n t r a c t  for Re g u l a r  Educa t i o n  T r an s p o r t a t i o n  S e rv i c e s  

T h i s  cont r a c t  m a d e  and e n t e r e d  i n t o  t h i s 2 6 t h  d a y  o f  Ju l y  2 0 1 9 , by and 
b e t w e e n  t h e  Loudon C o u n t y  B o a rd o f  Educat i o n , p a r t y  o f  t he f i r s t  part 
( he r e i n a f t e r  B OAR D )  and s ch o o l  b u s  s e rv i c e  p r o v i de r s , p a r t y  o f  the s econd 

p a r t  ( h e r e i n a f t e r  CONTRACTOR ) . This con t r a c t  sh a l l  b e g i n  o n  t h e  1 s t  da y of 
Aug . 2 0 1 9 , e x t e n d i n g  t h rough t h e  2 0 2 2 - 2 0 2 3  s ch o o l  y ea r . 

Wi tnes seth : 

T h a t  f o r  a n d  i n  c on s i de r a t i o n  o f  t h e  cov e n a n t s and a g r e eme n t s  h e r e i na f t e r  
expr e s s e d ,  BOARD a g r e e s  t o  p a y  t o  CONTRACTOR o n  a mon t h l y  b a s i s , a t  a p e r  
p a y  p e r i od r at e ,  t h e  s um o f  $ 3 4 . 4 1 per s e a t , p l u s  t h e  ba� e r a t e  of $ 1 . 5 7 
p e r  mi l e  o f  rout e f o r  t h e  s ch o o l  y e a r  2 0 1 9 - 2 0 . BOARD a g re e s  t o  pay 
CON T RACTOR a n  i n c r e a s e  of 3 %  o n  b o t h  seat a n d  m i l e a g e  p a y  e a c h  year of the 
con t ra c t . 

BOARD and CONTRACTOR a g r e e  t h a t  i f ' t h e  mont h l y  a v e r a g e  c o s t  o f  fue l ,  a s  
pub l i s he d  b y  AAA o f  E a s t  T e nn e s s e e , e x c e e d s  t h e  p r i ce o f  $ 2 . 0 0 per gal l on 
( s l i d i n g  s c a l e  b a s e  amo u n t ) ,  BOARD w i l l  i n c r e a s e  p e r  m i l e  pay b y  1 cent 
f o r  e v e r y  5 c e n t  i n c reme n t  the a v e r a g e  p r i c e  o f  fue l c l imb s  above $2 . 0 0 

f o r  t h e  c u r r e n t  p a y  p e r i od . Di e s e l  bus e s  w i l l  b e  p a i d  b a s e d  on t he ave r a g e  
c o s t  o f  d i e s e l  fu e l . G a s o l i n e  b u s e s w i l l  b e  p a i d  b a s e d  on t h e  average c o s t  
o f  g a s o l i ne . M i l e a g e  p a y  i s  c a l c u l a t ed u s i n g  t h e  numb e r  o f  mi l e s  ea ch b u s  
t r a ve l s , i n c l u d i n g  d e a dh e a d  m i l e s . 

S e a t  p a y  i s  c a l c u l a t e d  u s i n g  t h e  capa c i t y  o f  t h e  b u s  mu l t ip l i e d  by the 
mont h l y  s e a t  p a y  r a t e . S e a t  pay r a t e  i s  $ 3 4 . 4 1 f o r  t h e  2 0 1 9 - 2 0  s chool 
y e a r . E a c h  p a y  d a t e  w i l l  r e f l e c t  o n e  t e n t h  o f  the a n n u a l  s e a t  pay . 

P a y  p e r i od b e g i n s  on t h e  f i r s t  f u l l  d a y  o f  s ch o o l  t h a t  b u s e s  a r e  s chedu l e d 
t o  run . T h e r e  w i l l  b e  1 0  e qu a l  p a y  p e r i ods . P a y ' da t e  w i l l  b e  t h e  3 0 th day 
o f  e a ch mon t h  o r  the next b u s i ne s s  day if the 3 0 th f a l l s  on a wee kend or 
h o l i da y ,  e xc e p t  for D e c embe r  and Ma y .  De cemb e r  p a y  d a t e  w i l l  be the l a s t  
d a y  o f  s ch o o l  b e f o r e  Ch r i s tma s Brea k .  Ma y p a y  da t e  w i l l  b e  t h e  l a s t  d a y  
o f  s ch o o l . BOARD a g r e e s  t o  p a y  CONTRACTOR for t h e  t o t a l  numb e r  of days 
that b u s e s  a r e s c h e du l e d  t o  r u n ,  a c c o r d i n g  t o  the s ch o o l  c a l endar,  except 
for Fai lure t o  Operate ( S e e  P a r a g raph I V . ) 

1 



CONTRACTOR a g r e e s  t o  t ra n sp o r t  a l l  c h i l d r e n  r e s i d i n g  a l ong t h e  des igna t ed 
r o u t e  t o  t h e  d e s i gn a t e d  s choo l and b a c k .  CONTRACTOR a g r e e s  t o  opera t e  
s a id b u s  r o u t e  a c c o r d i ng t o  t h e  t ime s ch e d u l e  pre s c r i b e d  b y  t h e  Direc t o r  
o f  S choo l s  o r  t h e  S upe rvi s o r  o f  T ra n s p o r t at i on . N o  s t udent s ha l l  b e  p i c ked 
up b e f o r e  6 : 3 0 A . M .  un l e s s  g r a n t e d  p e rmi s s i o n  by t h e  D i r e c t o r  o f  S choo l s  
o r  t h e  T r a n sp o rt a t i on D i r e c t o r . S ame s h a l l  d e s i g na t e  t h e  r o u t e  to be 
f o l l ow e d  a n d  the school o r  s choo l s  w h i c h  s ha l l  b e  s e rved b y  t h e  
CONTRACTOR . 

BOARD a g re e s  t o  r e imbu r s e  C ONTRACTOR f o r  annual comme rc i a l  t a g  rene w a l  a t  
t h e  r a t e  d e s i gna t e d  b y  t h e  S t a t e  o f  TN i n  con s id e r a t ion o f  t h e  number o f  
s e a t s  o n  e a ch s c h o o l  b u s . BOARD w i l l  n o t  re imbu r s e  amoun t s  p a i d  due t o  
e r r o r s  m a d e  in c a l cu l a t i o n . 

I .  Rou te Adj u s tments 

BOARD s h a l l  have the r i gh t  to a l t e r  any s ch o o l  bus r o u t e  and decre a s e  or 
i n c r e a s e  t h e  numb e r  o f  bus rout e s . Re a s ons for t h e s e  adj u s tmen t s  may 
i n c l ude , but not b e  l im i t e d  t o : 

a .  Fun d i n g  i s s u e s . 
b .  C h a n g e s i n  s t udent popu l a t i o n s . 
c .  I n c r e a s e  o r  d e c re a s e  i n  t h e  numb e r  o f  s chool s i t e s . 
d .  Re z on i ng s c h o o l  a t t endance a r e a s . 
e .  Any good o r  s u f f i c i e nt r e a s on w h i c h  cont ribut e s  t o  t he e f ficient 

ope rat i on o f  t h e  t ra n sp o r t a t i on s y s t em .  

I I . Route � l eage Report 

On or a b o u t  t h e  f i f t e e n t h  ( 1 5 th )  day of t h e  1 s t  and 4 th pay p e r i od 
CONTRACTOR s ha l l  h a v e  e a c h  d r i v e r  comp l e t e  a Rou t e  M i l e a g e  Report . Thi s 
r e p o r t  w i l l  b e  s ubmi t t e d  t o  t h e  S up e r v i s o r  o f  T ranspo r t a t i on on the da y 
t h a t  p a y ch e c ks a r e  d i s t r i b ut e d  f o r  t h a t  p a y  pe ri od . The f i r s t  pay period 

w i l l  b e  c a l c u l a t e d  on mi l ea g e  s ubmi t t e d  the p r i o r  y e a r . M i l e a ge chang e s  
w i l l  b e  a d j u s t e d  on t h e  2 nd p a y  da t e , i f  appl i cab l e . 

I I I . � leage s hal l be computed as follows 

Morn i ng : B e g i n mi l e a g e  w i t h  f i r s t  s t udent p i c ke d  up , cont i n ue mo r n i n g  
m i l e a g e  t o  t h e  l a s t  s c h o o l  t o  wh ich s t udent s a r e  d e l i v e r e d . 
A f t e rnoon : B e g i n  rout e a t  t h e  f i r s t  s ch o o l  o f  p i c kup , cont i n u e  unt i l  l a s t  
s t udent s t op . BOARD a g r e e s  t h a t  addi t i ona l mi l e a g e  o f  1 5  d e a d  h e ad mi l e s  
w i l l  b e  added t o  t h e  compu t e d  mi l e a ge d e s cribed above . M i n imum route 
m i l e a g e  w i l l  b e  c a l c u l a t e d  a t  s i xt y  mi l e s . 

IV . Failure to operate 

For e a ch a n d  e v e r y  da y t h e  CONTRACTOR fa i l s  t o  ope r a t e  h i s / h e r  route i n  
a c c o r da n c e  w i t h  t h e  s c h o o l  c a l e n d a r  o r  do e s  n o t  s e cu r e  s ub s t i t ut e  
e qu i pm e n t  me e t i n g  t h e  s t andards s e t  b y  t h e  BOARD a n d  Tenne s s e e  S t a t e  B o a rd 
o f  Educ a t i on t o  d e l i v e r  s a i d  c h i l dr e n , t h e  BOARD s ha l l  deduct from the 

2 



CONTRACTOR t h e  da i l y  pay r a t e , o r  app l i cab l e  port i o n  t h e re o f ,  from the 
mont h l y  p a yment du e . 

V .  Equipmen t  

CON T RACTOR a g re e s  t h a t  b u s e s  w i l l  b e  ma i n t a in e d  s o  t h a t  t h e y  m e e t  a l l  
me cha n i c a l  a n d  s a fe t y  r e q u i r eme n t s  e s t a b l i s h e d  b y  t h e  T e nn e s s e e State 
Board of E d u c a t i o n . CONTRACTOR furthe r a g r e e s  that b u s e s  w i l l  meet or 
e x c e e d  a l l  l o ca l ,  s t at e ,  and f e de r a l  l a w s , r u l e s , and r e g u l a t i ons . Al l 
b u s e s  s ha l l  be t i t l e d  o r  l e a s e d  t o  t h e  p e r s o n  w i t h  whom t h e  cont ract i s  
h e l d . 

VI . O ther u s e  of Equipmen t 

CON T RACTOR a g r e e s  t o  r emove o r  comp l e t e l y  b l o c k  f rom v i e w ,  a n y  and a l l  

ma r k e r s  t h a t  s e rve t o  i d e n t i fy Loudon coun t y  B o a r d  o f  Edu c a t ion when and 
if a bus i s  us e d  for any purpo s e  o t h e r  t han t h a t  a u t h o r i z ed in this 
c o n t r a ct . CON T RACTOR unde r s t a nds t h a t  a n y  i n s u r a n c e  c o v e r a g e  i s sued b y  
t h e  BOARD w i l l  b e come n u l l and vo i d  w h e n  bus i s  u s e d  f o r  a n y  unautho ri z e d  
purp o s e . 

VI I . Sub s ti tute equipment 

CON T RACTORS who s e rv i c e  t h r e e  ( 3 )  or mo r e  b u s  r out e s  mu s t  have a spare bus 
a va i l ab l e  a t  a l l  t ime s . S ub s t i t u t e  e qu ipme nt mus t  me e t  all s t andards 
imp o s e d  by t h e  s t a t e  and t h e  l o c a l  Board of Educat i o n . S ub s t i t u t e  
e qu i pmen t  u s e d  mo r e  t h a n  f i v e  ( 5 )  con s e cu t i ve d a y s  mu s t  b e  app roved b y  t h e  
D i r e c t o r  o f  S ch o o l s  o r  t h e  S up e r v i s o r  o f  T r a n s p o rt a t i o n . 

VI I I . Extended u s e  of equ ipmen t  

CONTRACTOR is r e s p on s ib l e  for p r o v i d i n g  w r i t t e n  n o t i f i c a t i on to the 
T r a n s p o r t a t i on Depa rtment wh e n  b us e s  are purcha s e d ,  r emoved from se rvi c e , 
e x t e n d e d  for u s e , i n s p e c t e d ,  e t c . 

I X . Breakdown of equipmen t  

CONTRACTORS are r e qu i red t o  r e p o rt a l l  i n - ro u t e  b r e a kdowns a n d  I or de l a y s 
t o  t h e  S u p e r v i s o r  o f  T r a n s p o r t a t i on a s  s o on a s  po s s i b l e  a f t e r  the 
o c c u r r e n c e . 

3 



X .  D ri vers 

CONTRACTOR a g r e e s t h a t  a l l  d r i ve r s , w h e t h e r  CONTRACTOR or o t h e r  
i nd i v i d ua l s ,  w i l l  m e e t  t h e  qua l i f i c a t i o n s  s e t  b y  t h e  BOARD i n  t h e  " Loudon 
Co . S ch oo l s ' Bus D r i v e r ' s  H a ndbo o k" . Cop i e s  are a va i l a b l e  in the o f fice o f  
t h e  Loudon Count y B o a r d  o f  E du c a t i o n  I T r a n spo r t a t i on Depa r tment , and 
w h i ch CON T RACTOR h e r eb y  a c kn ow l e dge s t ha t  t h e  handboo k has b e e n  re a d  a n d  
u n de r s t oo d . CONTRACTOR a g r e e s  t h a t  a l l  docume nt a t i on i n c l u d i n g  b u t  not 
l imi t e d  to phys i c a l  examina t i o n s , l i ce ns e s , i n fo rma t i o n  s h e e t s  and 
s ub s t i t u t e  d r i v e r s  w i l l  b e  on f i l e  w i t h  Supervi s o r  o f  T r a n s po r t a t i on by 
Augu s t  1 s t of e a c h  y e a r . A l l  do cumen t at ion w i l l  be r e q u i r e d  be fore dr i v e r s  
w i l l  b e  a u t h o r i z ed t o  d r i ve a s c h o o l  b u s . 
CONTRACTOR a g r e e s  t h a t  a l l  p r o s pe c t i ve d r i v e r s  w i l l  s ubmi t  t o  pre
emp l o yment drug t e s t i n g  and app roved d r i v e r s  w i l l  comp l y  w i t h  the Loudon 
C o u n t y Drug and Alcohol P o l i cy f o r  S ch o o l  T r a n sport a t i o n  Pe r s onnel , a s  
we l l  a s  T i t l e  4 9  C F R  S e c t i o n  3 8 2 : 

CONTRACTOR a g r e e s t h a t  CONTRACTOR o r  a n y  o f  h i s / h e r  d r i v e r s  s h a l l  have no 
p r i o r  c r im i n a l  r e c o r d . P e nd i n g  c r imi n a l  cha r g e s  may r e s u l t  i n  s u s p en s i o n  
o f  d r i v i ng p r i v i l e g e s . 

CONTRACTOR a g r e e s t h a t  i f  a n y  c r imi n a l  c h a r g e s  a re brought a g a i n st 
CONTRACTOR o r  a n y  of h i s / h e r  drivers t h a t  CONTRACTOR s ha l l  immediat e l y  
i n f o rm t h e  D i r e c t o r  o f  S c ho o l s . 

CONT RACTOR a g r e e s  t o  i ndemn i f y  and h o l d  h a rml e s s  LOU DON CO . BOARD OF 
E DUCAT I ON f o r  a l l  l o s s e s , co s t s , expe n s e s  and I o r  dama g e s  s u f fered or 
i n c u r re d  b y  BOARD a n d  as a r e s u l t  of the f a i l u r e  b y  OWNER o r  any of 
OWN E R ' S  d r i ve r s  t o  comp l y  w i t h  a n y  and a l l  app l i ca b l e  s t a t e  o r  fede ral 
l aw s  or r e gu l a t i o n s , BOAR D po l i c i e s  o r  p r o c e du r e s ,  and p r ov i s i ons of t h i s  
c o n t r a c t . 

CONTRACTOR a g r e e s  t h a t  BOARD w i l l  p a y  o n l y  t h e  co s t s  a s s o c i a t e d  with 
ran dom drug and a l co h o l  t e s t i n g . Co s t s  a s s o c i a t e d  w i t h  p r e  emp loyment , 
r e t u r n  t o  dut y ,  t e s t i n g  p e r f o rmed a s  p a r t  o f  a SAP p ro g ram, annual 
p h y s i c a l s  e t c . , w i l l  not be the re spo n s i bi l i t y of the BOARD . 

P e r  S t a t e  Board o f  Educa t i on Chap t e r  0 5 2 0 - 1 2 - 0 1 ,  d r i ve r s  mu s t  s ubmi t  t o  
f i n g e rp r i nt ing e v e r y  f i ve y e a r s . CONTRACTOR a g r e e s  t o  pay f o r  any co s t s  
a s s o c i a t e d  w i t h  t h e  f i n g e rp r i n t i n g  proce s s . 

XI . Penalty for non- compl iance 

I f  CONTRACTOR doe s  n o t  m e e t  t h e  t ime l i n e  f o r  a l l  docume n t a t i o n  requ i re d  
b y  t h e  T ra n s p o r t a t ion Depa rtment , i n c l u d i n g  b u t  not l imi t e d  t o  phy s i ca l  
e x a m i n a t i on s ,  dr i v e r  i n f o rma t i o n ,  veh i c l e  i n forma t i o n ,  de t a i l e d  route 
s h e e t s ,  and End o f  Ro u t e  s h e e t s ,  t h e re s h a l l  b e  dedu c t e d  f r om any sums due 
t he CON T RACTOR $ 1 0 0  per d a y  f o r  e a c h  b u s  o r  driver not having comp l e t e  
i n fo rma t i o n  f i l e d  w i t h  t h e  S up e rv i s o r  o f  T r a n s p o r t a t i o n . 

4 



XI I . Driver Training 

CONTRACTOR a g re e s  t h a t  a l l  d r i v e r s  a r e  r e q ui r ed to a t t e nd t h e  Dr i v e r  I n 
S e rv i c e  P r o gram h e l d  b y  t h e  S t a t e  o f  Tenne s s e e  a s  we l l  a s  a n y  t ra i n i ng 
s e s s i o n s  h e l d  by Loudon County S c h o o l s  T r a n s po r t a t i on Depa rtment . Any 
c omp e n s a t i o n  r e q u i r e d  t o  e n s u r e  manda t o r y  a t t endance w i l l  b e  at t h e  
e xp e n s e  o f  t h e  CONTRACTOR . Any i n d i v i dua l t h a t  h a s  not a t t ended t h e  f i r s t  
o f  t h e  above t ra i n i ng s  a va i l ab l e  a ft e r  comme n c i n g  t o  d r i v e  s h a l l  n o t  be 
a l l ow e d  to con t i n u e  d r i v i ng unt i l  the requi rement for t r a i n i ng i s  met . 

XI I I . I n surance & Financial Re spon s ibi l i ty 

BOA R D  a g r e e s  t o  p ro v i d e  one mi l l i o n  ( $ 1 , 0 0 0 , 0 0 0 ) do l l a r  L i a b i l i ty 
I n s u r a n c e  p l u s  a f i ve mi l l i on ( $ 5 , 0 0 0 , 0 0 0 )  do l l a r  umb r e l l a / e x c e s s  po l i c y  
on a l l  bu s e s  unde r cont r a c t . 

S h ou l d  CON T RACTOR o r  CONT RACTOR ' S  emp l o y e e  c a u s e  a n y  damage t o  any BOARD 
owned p r ope r t y ,  any out of p o c k e t  mon i e s , s uch as i n s u rance deduct ibl e s  
s ha l l  b e  p a i d  b y  t h e  C ONTRACTOR . 

The CONTRACTOR s h a l l  r e t a i n  s o l e  f i n a n c i a l  r e spons i b i l i t y  f o r  a l l  Wor ker ' s  
C ompe n s a t i o n , w i t hh o l d i n g , and emp l o yme nt t a x e s  due t o  Fede r a l , St ate , o r  
l o c a l governme n t s  on a ccount o f  d r i v e r s , and o t h e r  w o r k e r s  n e c e s s a ry f o r  
t he p e r forma n c e  o f  t h e  C ONTRACTOR ' S  ob l i g a t i o n s  und e r  t h e  t e rms o f  t h i s 
Ag r e ement . The C ON T RACTOR a g r e e s  t o  s a v e  and h o l d  h a rml e s s  t h e  BOARD 
f r om a n y  c l a im by d r i v e r s  and o t h e r  wor k e r s  u s ed by t h e  CONT RACTOR , or b y  
a n y  F e d e ra l , S t a t e ,  o r  l o c a l  governme nt a l  agency , o n  a ccount o f  wage , 
i n du s t r i a l  a c c i d e n t , un empl oyme n t  compe n s a t i on c l a ims o r  Wor k e r ' s  
C ompe n s a t i o n  C l a ims , w i t hh o l d i n g s , a n d  empl oyme n t  t a xe s ,  o r  a n y  other 
a c t i on s  a r i s ing f r om t h e  CONTRACTOR ' S  r e l a t i on s h i p w i t h  i t s  emp l oyees . I t  
i s  f u r t h e r  a g r e e d  t h a t  a n y  prop e r t y  dama ge o r  bodi l y  i n j u r y  s u s t a i ned by 
o r  c a u s e d  b y  unqu a l i f i e d  dr i v e r s  o r  unautho r i z e d  pa s s e n g e r s  w i l l  be the 
s o l e  r e spon s ib i l i t y  of t h e  CONTRACTOR . To f u l f i l l  CONTRACTOR ' S  
ob l i g a t i o n s  und e r  t h i s  P a r a g raph , CONTRACTOR a g r e e s  t o : 

A .  Ma i n t a i n  i n  f o r c e  a t  a l l  t ime s pr ope r Wo r ke r ' s  C omp e n s a t i on 
i n s u ra n c e  cove rage , or a s ub s t i t u t e  i n s u r a n c e  p o l i c y  accept a b l e  
t o  t h e  B OAR D p r o v i d i n g  s im i l a r  coverage a n d  ben e f i t s ,  cove r i n g  
a l l  d r i ve r s , a n d  l a b o r e r s  u s e d  b y  i t  i n  t h e  p e r f o rmance of t h i s  
Agr e eme n t , o r  a l e t t e r  f rom CONTRACTOR i n d i c a t i n g t h e i r  
de c i s i on t o  be r e spon s i b l e  f o r  i n j u r i e s  t h e y  may s u s t a i n  in 
p u r s u i t  o f  t he i r  c o n t r a c t  in l i e u  of w o r k e r ' s  comp e n s a t ion , i f  
a l l ow e d  b y  w o r k e r ' s  c ompe n s a t i o n  l a w . 

B .  Fi l e  a l l  F e d e r a l ,  S t a t e , Provinc i a l  and l o c a l  income , 

w i t h ho l d i ng , and emp l oyme n t  forms and r e t u r n s  w h i c h  it  may be 
r e q u i r e d  b y  l a w  t o  f i l e ,  on a ccount of CONT RACTOR a n d  a l l  
d r i ve r s , and l a b o r e r s  u s ed b y  CONTRACTOR i n  t h e  p e r formance o f  

5 



t h i s  Ag r e ement a t  t he t ime and p l ace w h i c h  ma y be speci f i e d  in 
the app l i c a b l e  Fede r a l , S t a t e ,  and l o c a l  l aws , and t o  pay when 
due a l l  t a x e s  and cont r ibut i o n s  r ep o r t e d  i n  s u ch forms and 
r e t u r n s . 

CONTRACTOR mu s t  furn i s h  t o  the T r a n s po r t a t i o n  Depa rtment a 
c u r re n t  c e r t i f i c a t e  o f  Wor k e r ' s  C ompen s a t i on I n s u r an c e  cov e r a g e  
o r  p r o o f  o f  s ub s t i t u t e  coverage by Augu s t  1 s t  o f  e a c h  school 
ye a r . 

BOARD DOES NOT MAKE ANY REPRESENTAT ION THAT ANY INSURANCE I T  MAY 

REQUIRE CONTRACTOR TO MAINTAIN I S  ADEQUATE TO COVER CONTRACTOR ' S 

EXPOSURES . 

XIV . D river / CONTRACTOR D i s c ip l i ne 

D i s c ip l i n a r y  a c t i on s  may be t a ken a s  deemed n e c e s s a r y  by the Supe r v i s o r  of 
T r a n s po r t a t i on when t h e  driver o r  CONTRACTOR 

a .  Has v i o l a t e d  a p o l i c y  of Loudon Count y B o a r d  o f  
Educa t i o n , S t a t e  o f  Tenne s s e e , o r  fede r a l  a ge n c y . 

b .  H a s  v i o l a t e d  o r  i gn o r e d  a spec i f i c  di r e c t i v e  o f  t h e  
D i r e c t o r  o f  S choo l s  o r  t h e  Supe rvi s o r  of T r a n s p o rt a t i o n . 

c .  H a s  comp r omi s e d t h e  s a f e t y  o f  s t udent s .  
d .  U s e s  t ob a c c o  p r o du c t s  o r  e l e c t r o n i c  c i ga r e t t e s  w h i l e  s t udents a r e  

o n  t h e  b u s  
o r  p e rmi t s  s t ude n t s t o  d o  s o . 

e .  U s e s  o r  i s  unde r t h e  i n f l uence o f  a l coho l a n d / o r  
i l l e g a l  s ub s t a n c e s  w h i l e  ope r a t i ng or a t t empt i n g  t o  
ope r a t e  a bu s ,  o r  i s  unde r t h e  i n f l u ence o f  a l e g a l  s ub s tance , t h e  
t a ki n g  o f  w h i c h  p r oh i b i t s t h e  s a fe pe r forma n c e  o f  a s a fety 
s e n s i t i ve funct i o n . 

f .  Fa i l s  t o  r e p o r t  a n y  a c c i dent t o  the S up e r v i s o r  o f  
T r a n s p o r t a t i o n . 

g .  Fa i l s  t o  report d e l a ys i n  rout e ,  f o r  wha t e v e r  r e a s on , t o  the 
S up e r v i s o r  of T ra n sp o rt a t i on . 

h .  Fa i l s  t o  ma i n t a i n  t h e  b u s  t o  S t a t e  o f  Tenne s s e e  o r  
Loudon C o u n t y B o a r d  o f  Educa t i on s t anda r d s . 

i .  U s e s  p r o f a n i t y  i n  t h e  p r e s e nce o f  s t uden t s . 
j .  U s e s  p r o fa n i t y  w i t h  t h e  p a r en t  o f  a n y  s tudent w h i l e  p e r forming 

dut i e s  as a d r i v e r / CONTRACTOR . 
k .  Fa i l s  t o  de l iv e r  s t ude n t s  t o  the a s s i gn e d  l o c a t i o n . 
l .  Fa i l s  t o  run t h e  a s s i gned route a t  the des i g n a t e d  

t ime . 
m .  E x c e e d s  o r  s h o r t - c u t s  t h e  de s i g n a t e d  rout e w i t hout t h e  

a u t h o r i z at i on o f  t h e  S upe r v i s o r  of T r a n s po r t a t i on . 
n .  Admi n i s t e r s imp roper di s c i p l i n e  in v i o l a t i on o f  

e x i s t i n g  B o a r d  o f  Educa t i on pol i c y . 
o .  I n subordi na t i on t o  t h e  Di r e c t o r  o f  S choo l s  o r  t h e  

S upe r vi s o r  o f  T r a n sp o r t a t ion . 

6 



p .  S ubmi t t i n g  i n a ccura t e  o r  mi s l ea d i n g  i n f o rma t i o n . 
q .  I s s u a n c e  o f  a mot o r  ve h i c l e  c i t a t i o n . 
r .  L e a v e s  c h i l dr e n  una t t e n d e d  whi l e  i n  p e r f o rma n c e  o f  t h e  dut i es 

o u t l i n e d  h e re i n . 

D i s c i p l i n a r y  a c t i o n s  o r  me a s u r e s  s ha l l  i nvolve a n y  o f  t h e  
Fo l l ow i n g : 

a .  W r i t t e n  s us p e n s i o n . 
b .  W r i t t e n  d i s c h a r g e . 
c .  C o n t r a c t  t e rm i n a t i o n . 
d .  Temp o r a r y  o r a l  s u s p e n s i o n  p e n d i n g  furthe r i nve s t i g a t i o n . 
e .  O r a l  o r  w r i t t e n  repr imand 

S u s p en s i on of the b u s  from the a s s i g n e d  rou t e s  s ha l l  be for the fo l l owi n g : 
a .  Fa i l ur e  t o  u s e  prope r l y  l i c e n s e d  d r i v e r s  o r  d r i v e r s  

who f a i l  t o  comp l y  w i t h  f e de ra l ,  s t a t e , and l o c a l  b o a r d  po l i c y . 
b .  C o n t i nu e d  b r e a kdown o f  t h e  b u s  w i t h o u t  proper 

s ub s t i t u t e  e qu i pment . 
c .  C o n t i nua l l y  be i n g l a t e  o r  e a r l y . 
d .  Fa i l u r e  t o  ope r a t e  s a fe e qu ipmen t . 
e .  Fa i l ur e  t o  a b i d e  b y  Loudon County S ch o o l  B o a r d  po l i cy . 
f .  Any a c t i v i t y  c o n t r a r y  t o  t h e  s a f e  o p e r a t i on o f  a s c h o o l  bu s . 

XV .  Proba tion Agreement with CONTRACTOR 

P r ob a t i o n  a gr e eme n t s  ma y be drawn up by the S upe rvi s o r  o f  T r a n sportat i on 
f o r  a n d  w i t h  CONTRACTOR a s  t o  a r e a s  t ha t  

.
n e e d  imp roveme n t . The s e  a r e a s  

w i l l  b e  l i s t e d ,  d a t e d  a nd g i v e n  t o  CONTRACTOR . I f  i mpr ovement i s  n o t  made 
as o u t l i n e d , c o n t r a c t may be t e rmi n a t e d  b y  the B o a r d  of Educat i on . 

XVI . Comp l a i n t s  

I n  the event t h a t  any p e r s on , ma k e s  a comp l a i n t  as to the u n s a f e  operat i o n  
o f  a s ch o o l  b u s  b y  a CONTRACTOR o r  h i s / h e r  emp l o y e e , CONTRACTOR agre e s  
t h a t  h e / s h e  w i l l  r e p o r t  t h e  c omp l a i n t  t o  t h e  T r a n s p o rt a t i on Depa rtment i n  
a c c o rd a n c e  w i t h  BOARD p o l i cy 3 . 4 0 0  a n d  S t a t e  o f  T N  Pub l i c  Chapt e r  2 8 9 .  

XVI I . Contracted S ervi ces Compliance 

CONTRACTOR a g r e e s  t o  fu l l y  c omp l y  w i t h  t h e  f o l l o w i n g  a s s u r a n c e s  in a 
t ime l y  and e f f i c i e nt man n e r : 

A l l  d r i v e r s  h i r e d  a f t e r  Jan u a r y  1 ,  2 0 1 8 ,  a r e  a t  l e a s t  2 5  y e a r s  of age w i t h  
a t  l e a s t  f i ve c o n s e c u t i v e  y e a r s  o f  unre s t r i c t e d  d r i v i ng e x p e r i e nce p r i o r  
t o  t he dat e o f  h i r e . 

P r i o r  t o  t ra n s p or t i n g  s t udent s ,  a l l  d r i ve r s  have comp l e t e d  a s choo l bus 
d r i v e r  t r a i n i ng p r og r am ba s ed on s t andards e s t ab l i s h e d  by t h e  TN 
Depa rtment s of Edu c a t i o n  and S a f e t y . M i n imum s t a nd a r d s  i n c l ude : s t udent 

7 



ma n a g ement , d i s t ra c t e d  d r i v i n g ,  s chool and d i s t r i c t  p o l i c y ,  d r i v i n g  
t e ch n i qu e s ,  evacua t i o n s , l o a d i n g  and u n l o a d i n g ,  mi r r o r  u s a g e , and s t a t e  
a n d  fede r a l  l a w  r e g a r d i n g  t h e  u s e  a n d  d r i v i n g  o f  a s ch o o l  b u s . 

A l l  r e q u i r e d  docume n t a t i o n  i s  on f i l e  and a c c e s s ib l e  ( a t a mut ua l l y  agreed 
upon p e r i od i c  r e v i e w ) to t h e  d i s t r i c t  t ra n s p o r t a t i o n  s up e r v i s o r . Requ i red 
do cument a t i on i n c l u de s but not l imi t e d  t o : 
Emp l o yme nt app l i c a t i o n ,  c u r r e n t , annual mot o r  ve h i c l e  repo r t , crimi n a l  
r e c o r d  che c k ,  c u r r e n t  C OL l i ce n s e  w i t h  P & S endo r s ement s ,  cur r e nt annual 
me d i c a l  e x ami n a t i on , and annual emp l oy e e  e v a l u a t i on /p e r f o rma nce review . 

A l l  p e r s o n s  a u t h o r i z e d  t o  d r i ve a s ch o o l  b u s  h a v e  b e e n  s ubmi t t e d  t o  the 
dep a r tme nt o f  s a f e t y  a nd a r e  a u t h o r i z ed i n  t h e  P o r t a l  Admi n i s t ra t o r  
Accoun t s  Mana g eme n t  S y s t em .  

A l l  d r i v e r s  know a n d  unde r s t an d  t ra n s po rt a t i o n  p o l i c i e s , p r o c e dure s ,  and 
t h e i r  dut i e s  r e g a rd i n g  a s t udent e x i t ing a bus at a p o i n t  o t h e r  tha n  the 
s t u d e n t ' s  de s i gn a t e d s t op . 

Al l docume n t a t i o n  i s  on f i l e  t h a t  t h e  s chool b u s  manu f a c t u r e r ' s ve h i c l e  
ma i n t e na n c e  s ch e du l e  i s  b e i ng f o l l owed and any r e s u l t i n g  s e r v i c e , 
ma i nt e n a n c e , o r  r e pa i r . 

G i v e s  a s s ur a n c e  t h a t  t h e r e  i s  a s t a ndardi z e d pro cedure f o r  d r i v e r s  to 
r e p o r t  v e h i c l e  p r ob l ems t o  t h e  CONTRACTOR or ma i n t e n a n c e  s t a f f . 

G i v e s a s s ur a n c e  t h a t  a l l  s e rv i c e , repa i r ,  and ma i n t e n a n c e  r e c o rds are 
r e t a i n e d  for the fu l l  l i f e of the veh i c l e  p l u s  f i ve ye a r s  a f t e r  i t  has 
b e e n  s o l d  or r e p l a c e d . 

G iv e s  a s s ur a n c e s  t h a t  a l l  s ch o o l  bu s e s  a r e  c l e an on t h e  i n s i de a nd 
out s i d e . 

G i v e s  a s s u r a n c e  t h a t  s ch o o l  b us e s  have no e quipme n t  moun t e d  on or deb r i s 
l o c a t e d  on t h e  d a s h . 

G i v e s  a s s u r a n c e  t h a t  no bu s e s  a r e e qu i pped w i t h  a n y  p o r t a b l e  e l e ct ronic 
d e v i c e  as proh i b i t e d  by TCA 4 5 5 - 8 - 1 9 2 . 

G i v e s a s s u ra n c e  t h a t  a l l  b u s e s  a re i n s p e c t e d  annua l l y ,  a n d  b i annua l l y  wh e n  
app l i c abl e ,  b y  t h e  depa r tme nt o f  s a f e t y  and a u t ho r i z e d  i n  PAAMS . 

XVI I I . S tudent Confiden ti a l i ty 

CONTRACTOR i s  r e s p on s ib l e  f o r  e n s u r i n g  t h a t  h e / s h e  and emp l o y e e s  DO NOT 
d i s c l o s e  ANY i n f o rma t i o n  about s t udent s . FERPA d e f i n e s  d i s c l o s ure s as  
" t he r e l e a s e , t r an s fe r ,  o r  other commun i c a t i on o f  p e r s ona l l y  i dent i f i a b l e  
i n f o rma t i o n  con t a i ne d  i n  educ a t i o n  r e co rd s  t o  a n y  p a rt y ,  b y  a n y  mean s ,  

8 



i n c l u d i n g  o r a l , w r i t t e n , o r  e l e c t ron i c . "  A r e co rd i s  de f i n e d  a s : " any 
i n f o rma t i o n  r e c o rded i n  any way,  i nc l ud i n g  but not l im i t e d  t o  h andwri t i n g ,  
p r i n t , c omp u t e r  me di a , v i de o  or a u d i o  t a p e , f i lm ,  mi c r o f i lm,  and 
m i c r o f i c h e . "  A r e c o rd ma y a l s o  i n c l ude not e s  between d r i v e r s  a nd 
t e a ch e r s , d r i v e r ' s  p e r s on a l  n o t e s  about a s tudent , conve r s a t i o n s  among b u s  
d r i ve r s , s ubmi t t e d  report s b y  a d r i v e , and a d r i v e r ' s  r e c o l l e c t ion of 
e v e n t s . To e n s u r e  s u c h  r e c o rds r ema i n  c o n f i d e n t i a l , f o rms , not e s ,  
di s c i p l i na r y  r e p o r t s ,  a n d  o t h e r  do cume n t s  c o n c e r n i n g  a s t udent cannot b e  
c a r r i e d o r  d e l i v e r e d  t o  s chool s t a f f  by s t udent s .  I n  g e n e r a l ,  CON T RACTORS 
a n d / o r  d r i v e r s  mu s t  use a l l  provided i n fo rmat i on they r e c e i v e  about 
s t udent s o n l y  £or the s pe c i f i c  purpo s e  and in the cont e x t  in w h i ch the 
i n f o rma t i on wa s g i ven t o  them . 

XIX . Awarding/ Tran s fe r ring Contracts 

C o n t r a c t s  f o r  t r a n spo r t a t i on a r e  awarded by t h e  Boa rd of Edu c a t i on a f t e r  
t h e  Supe rv i s or o f  T r a n s p o rt a t i o n  and t h e  D i r e c t o r  o f  S choo l s  have 
i nt e rv i ew e d  and d e t e rm i n e d  the qua l i f i ca t i o n s  o f  the app l i cant and 
r e c omme nded approva l . 

C o n t r a c t s may b e  t r an s f e r r e d  t o  anot h e r  CON T RACTOR found sat i s f a c t o r y  by 
the B OAR D upon : 

a .  W r i t t e n  r e qu e s t  t o  t h e  S up e rv i s o r  o f  T r anspo r t a t i o n  
f o r  t h e  t ran s f e r  t o  b e  s ubmi t t e d  t o  t h e  Loudon C o u n t y  Board o f  
Educ a t i on f o r  approva l . 

b .  B o t h  p a rt i e s  s i gn a n  a f f i da v i t  a t t e s t i n g  t h e  f a i r  
ma r ke t  v a l ue p a i d  f o r  a n y  v e h i c l e  b e i n g  t r a n s f e r r ed . 

c .  A copy o f  B i l l  o f  S a l e  f i l e d  w i t h  Supe r v i s o r  o f  
T ra n s p o rt a t i on i f  t r a n s f e r  i s  approve d . 

d .  App rova l o f  t h e  BOARD o f  the t r a n s f e r . 

BOARD r e s e rv e s  t h e  r i ght to r e f u s e  t h e  t r a n s f e r  o f  cont r a c t s  

N o  r i gh t  o r  i nt e r e s t  i n  a b u s  c o n t r a c t  i s  t ra n s f e r ab l e  by CONTRACTOR a n d  
n o  con s i de r a t i o n  s ha l l  b e  p a i d  to an ope r a t o r  f o r  a g r e e ing t o  a tr a n s f e r  
o t h e r  t h a n  t h e  f a i r  ma r ke t  v a l u e , up t o  t he ma x imum amount s t a t e d ,  for a n y  
veh i c l e  s o l d  a s  a r e s u l t o f  t h e  t ra n s f e r . A n y  CONTRACTOR who v i olates o r  
o f f e r s  t o  v i o l a t e  t h i s  p o l i c y ,  o r  f a l s i f i e s  an a f f i da v i t , o r  induc e s  t h e  
BOARD t o  approve a t r an s f e r  b a s e d  upon f a l s e  o r  mi s l e a d i n g  i n f o rmat ion , o r  
w i l l i n g l y  p a rt i c i p a t e s  i n  any o f  t h e  f o r e g o i n g  sha l l  h a v e  any contract 
w i t h  BOARD in w h i ch h e  or she owns an i n t e r e s t , imme di a t e l y  c a n c e l ed a n d  
s u c h  p e r s o ns w i l l  b e  b a r r e d  f rom h o l d i n g  a n y  i n t e r e s t  i n  a s chool b u s  
c o n t r a c t  o r  emp l o yment by t h e  BOARD for a p e r i od o f  t e n  ( 1 0 )  years . 

I f  CONTRACTOR b e come s i n capac i t a t ed t h rough i l l n e s s  t h a t  wou l d  prevent 
h i m / h e r  f rom c a r r y i n g  out the t e rms o f  t h i s  cont r a c t , the spou s e  may 
cont i n u e  to ope r a t e  for t h e  dura t i on of t h i s c o n t r a c t  o r  t ra n s fer s a i d  
cont r a c t  t o  a n o t h e r  cont r a c t o r  f o u n d  s at i s fa c t o r y  b y  t h e  BOAR D . 

9 



XX . Termination o f  Con tract 

BOARD may t e rmin a t e  t h i s  cont ract i f  CONTRACTOR or any of h i s / h e r  drive r s  
do n o t  ope r a t e  e q u i pment in comp l i an c e  w i t h  t h i s  co nt r a c t  a n d  a l l  BOARD 
po l i c i e s  a n d  p r o c e du r e s , S t a t e  o f  T e nn e s s e e  B o a r d  o f  E d u c a t i o n  and 
Depa r tme n t  o f  S a f e t y  Pol i c i e s ,  Fed e r a l  Mot o r  C a r r i e r  S a f e t y  Admini s t rat i on 
r e g u l at i o n s , and Loudon C o u n t y  p r o c e dure s and r e gu l a t i on s . In t he event a 
CON T RACTOR w i s he s  t o  r e l i nqu i s h  a n y  o r  a l l  rout e s , 3 0  ( t h i r t y ) wor king 
days w r i t t e n  not i c e  m u s t  be g i ven , even in the l a s t  y e a r  of the cont ract . 

I N  W I TN E S S  WHEREO F ,  t h e  p a r t i e s  have h e r e t o  s e t  t h e i r  n ame s t h e  day and 
ye a r  f i r s t  w r i t t e n . 

DAT E 

L o u don C o u n t y  BOARD o f  Educa t i on 

By � -�v� S� 
BOARD 

DAT E 

B y  

B y  
LLC 

B y  
B u s  Li n e s , LLC 

B y  

B y  

1 0  



Loudon Coun ty Board of Education 

C o n t r a c t  f o r  Spe c i a l  Educ a t i on T r a n sp o r t a t i on S e r v i c e s  

T h i s  cont r a c t  made and e n t e red i n t o  t h i s  2 6 t h  day o f  Ju l y  
2 0 1 9 ,  b y  a nd b e t w e e n  t h e  Loudon Count y Board o f  Educat i o n ,  
p a r t y  o f  t h e  f i r s t  p a r t  ( he r e i na f t e r  BOARD )  a n d  Smi t h  Bus 
L i n e s , LLC ( h e r e i n a f t e r  CONTRACTOR )  t o  ope r a t e  Sp e c i a l  
E du c a t i on b u s e s  f o r  f o u r  s chool y e a r s  i n c l u s i ve a s  f o l lows : 
2 0 1 9 - 2 0 ,  2 0 2 0 - 2 1 ,  2 0 2 1 - 2 2 ,  2 0 2 2 - 2 3 . T h i s c o n t r a c t  s ha l l  beg i n  
on t he 1 s t  d a y  o f  Augu s t  2 0 1 9 . 

Wi tne s s e th : 

T h a t  for a n d  in con s i d e r a t i o n  o f  t h e  covenant s and a g r e ements 
h e r e i n a ft e r  expre s s e d ,  BOARD a g r e e s  t o  pay t o  CONTRACTOR on a 
mon t h l y  ba s i s ,  a t  a b a s e  r a t e  o f  $ 2 6 5 . 6 5 ,  p e r  b u s  p e r  day 
that bu s e s  a r e  s ch e du l e d  to run . 

BOARD and CONTRACTOR a g r e e  t h a t  i f  t h e  mon t h l y  a v e r a g e  cost 
of g a s o l i n e , a s  pub l i s h e d  by AAA of E a s t  Tenn e s s e e  e x c e eds 
t h e  p r i ce o f  $ 1 . 4 0 p e r  g a l l o n ,  ( s l i ding s c a l e  ba s e  amount ) a n  
i nc r e a s e  i n  da i l y  r a t e  o f  p a y  w i l l  b e  de t e rmined by a s l iding 
s c a l e . T h e  s l i d i n g  s c a l e  w i l l  provide a . 6 % i n c r e a s e  in 
da i l y  pay for e v e r y  n i c k e l  the a v e r a g e  p r i c e  of g a s o l i ne 
i n c r e a s e s ,  above the b a s e  amount . 

Al l o t h e r  app l i ca b l e  s t ipu l at i o n s  cont a i ned i n  t h e  C o n t ract 
for R e gu l a r  Educa t i on T r a n s po r t a t i on S e r vi c e s  are i n  e f fect 
for t h e  du r a t i on of t h i s  c o n t r a c t  as spe c i f i e d  above . 

I N  W I TN E S S  WHEREO F ,  t h e  p a r t i e s  have h e r e t o  s e t  t he i r  name s 
t h e  d a y  a n d  y e a r  f i r s t  w r i t t e n . 

DAT E  

By ��� B y  
D i r e c t o r  o f  S c h o o l s  

DATE By J� LLC 



Ii-i � H lt�ifi>. f'"'Fi ;,,�. �t'�iii � � �A � ,. S U w u. �  
G r o u p  M e d i ca re 
Adva nta ge 

lOUDON COUNTY GOVERNMENT - PPO 

Date: 8/6/2019 
Hum ana Medicare Employer Plan 

Plan Names: 
Rx Formulary: 

Traditional PPO 079 058 with Rx3 $5/$30/$60/33% from $0 to ICL; $5/25%/25%/25% from ICL to Catastrophic 

Group Plus Formulary - 20800 

Plan Year 
Blended Rate (eKcluding 
ACA Healtli Insurer Fee) 

1/1/2020 - 12/31/2020 $164.63 

Traditional PPO 079 058 Medical and Rx Benefit Overview 

Deductible 
Inpatient Acute Hospital 

Skilled Nursing Facility 

Physician Office Visits 

Specialist Office Visits 

Outpatient Surgical 

Ambulance 

Emergency Room 

Medical Maximum Out of Pocket 

Prescription Drugs (Retail 30 day supply) 

ACA Health Insurer Fee 

$26.27 

Premium Stabilization Total Blended Rate 
Adjustment (Per Member Per Month) 

($13.13) $177.77 

(In-Network/Out-of-Network) 

None I None 

$175 Copayment per Admission I 30% Coinsurance per Admission 
$50 Copayment (Days 21-100) I 30% Coinsurance (Days 1-

100) 

$5 Copayment I 30% Coinsurance 

$15 Copayment I 30% Coinsurance 

$50 Copayment / 30% Coinsurance 

$50 Copayment I $50 Copayment 

$65 Copayment I $65 Copayment 
$2,500 I $5,000 Combined (Med icare €overed Services) 

Rx3 $5/$30/$60/33% from $0 to ICL; $5/25%/25%/25% 

from ICL to Catastrophic 

•• 'See attached sheet for rating assumptions and stipulations. The benefits presented above are a high-level summary. Please consult the Plan Design Exhibit for a more 
detailed list of  covered'services, member cost shares, services subject to deductibles and any plan limitations.'" 

H u m a n a  Group Medicare Adva ntage 

3-Ye a r  Rate H istory: 

2018 Rates:  $ 192 .32  
2019 Rates : $164.41 
2020 Rates:  $ 177.77 - I n crease of $ 13 .36 per person per m o nth but sti l l  less t h a n  2018 rates 

A n n u a l  i n crea se per person $160.32 
C u rre ntly 70 p a rticipa nts - $11,222 .40 a n n u a l  increase 



r · r )  i · · 'I I-• ,·J � r Cl l" '. \. � I .... tJ I ' - t I - L 

A c1 \/ u r , cog '� 

LOUDON COU NTY GOVERNMENT - PPO 

Proposal Terms 

The benefits presented o n  the previous page are a high-level summary.  Please consult the Plan Design Exhibit 

for a more detai led outl ine of the benefits proposed. Final benefits may differ due to annua l  changes 
in C M S  benefit req u i re ments. 

For m e mbers with End Stage Renal Disease (ESRD), the Humana Group Medicare Advantage Plan i s  only 
offered to eligible members who are diagnosed and enrolled in a manner that is consistent with ap plicable 
M e d i care secondary laws, and the rules and regulations set forth by CMS. 

The rates provided do not reflect any potential premium adjustments provided by Center for Medicare and 

M edicaid Services (CMS) o r  federal regulations based o n  a Medicare beneficiary's income. 

H u m ana wil l  hold the proposed rate(s) u nless there are material changes to existing o r  imple mentation 

of new federal regulations that would i m pact Group Medica re. 

Humana will  hold the proposed rates, assu ming a l l  of the information provided is accurate, and could be subject to change should any 

of the following differ: 

All m e m bers a re retired a n d  en rol led in Medicare Part A and P a rt B. 

A m i n i m u m  average employer contribution level of 76% of the proposed pr·emium for the p l a n .  

A majority of mem bers' { 5 1 %  o r  more) primary residence i s  in a n  adequate Hum a n a  M edicare Advantage 
network service a rea. Humana will monitor network adeq uacy throughout the ye a r  to confirm standards are met. 

Enrolled membership should not change from current, or differ from the information provided, by more than 10% per year. 

H u m a na ' s  M e dicare Advantage plan is  the only plan offered and there is no a d ditional secondary plan wrapping around 
o r  offe red in conjunction with this plan for a l l  c u rrent and future Med icare el igible retirees. 

Part D, ad ministered by H u mana Pharmacy Solutions, wil l  uti l ize H umana's  Group Plus formulary and include utilization 

m a nagement programs such as :  qua ntity l imits, prior a u thorization, and step therapy. Humana conti n u a l ly updates its 

drug l ist a n d  qua ntity l i mits, a n d  ens ures these updates are in accordance with CMS regu lations. 

Ben efits, deductibl es, maximum out of pocket accumu lators, and any a ppl icable pha rmacy TrOOP accumu lators wi l l  be 
reset on January 1 each year. 

We are pleased to present this H u mana Group Medicare Advantage pr·oposal to you and assume a l l  information 

provided is accurate with the u n derstanding if there i s  a material change from the current offering environme nt, 
H u m a na has the right to revise or rescind the quote. 



LOUDON COUNTY CLERK 

CARRIE MCKELVEY COUNTY CLERK 

1 0 1  MULBERRY ST S TE 2 0 0 

LOUDON TN 3 7 7 7 4  

Telephone 

Fax 

8 6 5 - 4 5 8 - 3 3 1 4  

8 6 5 - 4 5 8 - 9 8 9 1  

Notaries to be elected S ep tember 0 3 , 2 0 1 9  

J U L I E  B ROOMS CAM P B E LL 

S U SAN H FOX 

APRI L F R E E MAN 

ASH L E E  E FRYE 

STE P HAN I E  KES I C K-STRE ET 

CAR LA A M I LLSAPS 

SONYA R MORGAN 

LEAH M I C H ELLE SLEDG E  

MARGARET B TAYLOR 


